% o

\ 8
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Notice of a public

To:

Date:

Time

Venu

Decision Session - Executive Member for Transport
Councillor D'Agorne (Executive Member)
Tuesday, 17 January 2023
: 10.00 am
e: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West Offices

(FO45)

AGENDA

Notice to Members — Post Decision Calling In:

*With

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item* on this
agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Services by 5:00 pm on
Thursday 19 January 2023.

in, require Full Council approval or are urgent which are not subject to the
call-in provisions. Any called in items will be considered by the Customer
and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee.

the exception of matters that have been the subject of a previous call

Written representations in respect of items on this agenda should be
submitted to Democratic Services by 5.00pm on Friday 13 January.

1.

Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might
have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have not already
done so in advance on the Register of Interests.

Minutes (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 13 December
2022.

www.york.gov.uk



Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have registered
to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak on agenda items
or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2 working
days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the management of
public participation at our meetings. The deadline for registering at
this meeting is 5:00pm on Friday 13 January 2023.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online registration
form. If you have any questions about the registration form or the
meeting, please contact Democratic Services. Contact details can be
found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be
webcast including any registered public speakers who have given their
permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on demand at
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we made some changes to how we ran council
meetings, including facilitating remote participation by public speakers.
See our updates (www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more
information on meetings and decisions.

Acknowledgement of Petitions (Pages 9 - 34)
The purpose of this paper is to acknowledge and address a number of
petitions that have been submitted to Highways and Transport.

Speed Limit Traffic Regulation Order (Pages 35 - 86)
Amendments

Consideration of representations received, in support of and objection
to advertised proposals to amend speed limits.

Directorate of Place 2022/23 Transport Capital (Pages 87 - 108)
Programme — Monitor 2

This report sets out progress to date on schemes in the 2022/23
Transport Capital Programme, and propose adjustments to scheme


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

allocations to align with the latest cost estimates and delivery
projections.

Stadium Parking Impact — Huntington Area (Pages 109 - 144)
TRO Consultation

The report considers the representations received to the Consultation
to introduce parking restrictions in the Huntington area due to
obstructive parking that has been occurring on stadium match days.
The Executive Member will be asked to make a decision on the
implementation of the proposal.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Executive Member considers urgent
under the Local Government Act 1972.



Democracy Officer:
Robert Flintoft
Contact details:
e Telephone — (01904) 555704
e Email — robert.flintoft@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak;

Business of the meeting;

Any special arrangements;

Copies of reports and;

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMAEMNESREEREISE (cantonese)
g3 ©27 AN Mo o (i (WCO ANTE | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Polish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
s U G T e e
T (01904) 551550



mailto:robert.flintoft@york.gov.uk

Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Decision Session - Executive Member for
Transport

Date 13 December 2022

Present Councillors D'Agorne

Officers in Attendance James Gilchrist - Director of Environment,

Transport and Planning

Dave Atkinson — Head of Highways and
Transport

Cathryn Moore — Corporate Business Partner
(Legal)

Peter Marsland - Traffic Projects Officer
Christian Wood — Smart Transport
Programme Manager

Gary Frost - Major Transport Projects
Manager

39.

40.

Declarations of Interest (10:01)

The Executive Member was asked to declare, at this point in the
meeting, any personal interests, not included on the Register of
Interests, or any prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interests
that he might have had in respect of business on the agenda.
He confirmed he had none.

Minutes (10:02)

Resolved: That the minutes of the Decision Session of the
Executive Member for Transport held on 15
November 2022 be approved and signed by the
Executive Member as a correct record, with the
amendment to item 38. To include ‘Officers reported
maintenance was based on the predominant use of
the road with the first part serving both residential
and agricultural users with the second part of the
lane being referred to as a ‘green lane’ and used
mainly for agricultural vehicle access.’



41.

42.

Page 2

Public Participation (10:04)

It was reported that there had been five registrations to speak at
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.
However, two public participation were unable to attend.

Cllr Hook welcomed that some repair work had been
undertaken on Butteracre Lane and the recommendation for a
20mph zone in Rufforth but noted a desire to see a buffering
zone encouraging speed reduction leading up to the village.

John Henderson noted that he felt the Council was
misrepresenting the position regarding Butteracre Lane’s
surface and that he had an outstanding FOI request and that
two Section 56 notices had been submitted. He asked that the
Executive Member reject option 1 in the report.

Nicholas Murray spoke as Vice Chair of Rufforth and Naburn
Parish Council and welcomed the 20mph change in Rufforth
and asked that the Parish be kept up to date with future
considerations. He noted concerns in the area with speeding
and asked that a buffering zone encouraging speed reduction
leading up to the village.

Butteracre Lane Condition Report (10:14)

Officers introduced the report and noted that, following the items
deferred from the last meeting, they had been able to consider
the additional information provided. The role of proactive and
reactive maintenance in keeping the highway to standard was
explained. It was confirmed that the use of the term ‘green lane’
at the previous meeting to describe part of Buttacre Lane was
only descriptive as there was not a legal definition of the term.
Finally Officers confirmed that an FOI regarding previous officer
involvement with the maintenance of the highway had been
received and would be responded to within the statutory
timescales.

The Executive Member confirmed he had visited the lane and
could see the different sections and their use. He welcomed
maintenance work that had been undertaken and acknowledged
the Council’s methodology for assessing where work would be
carried out and agreed to the officer recommendation.



Page 3

Officers also confirmed that standard wording had been
included in the report in error, referencing that an Equalities
Impact Assessment had been undertaken, however, this was
not the case and was noted as such. The report correctly states
that equalities are considered when working on any schemes
within the Highway maintenance programme and as an
overarching approach to Highway asset management.

Resolved:

I.  Approved Option 1, which is to continue as per the
HSIM and HIAMP meaning that annual safety
inspections will be carried out to identify immediate
issues and repairs will be authorised in accordance
with the current classification of the Carriageway, its
use and the priority. In addition annual surveys from
a proactive perspective will occur with specific asset
needs prioritised against the entire network

Reason: This approach recognises that the Western Section
has a different use and need to the remainder of the
Carriageway. In particular, there is evidence that the
Western Section is used by both non-agricultural
and agricultural vehicles, whereas the remainder of
the Carriageway appears to be used principally by
agricultural vehicles. As a result, the condition and
level of maintenance varies across the length of the
Carriageway. This is likely to necessitate more
interventions in regard to routine maintenance but is
unlikely to escalate to a capital scheme when
compared to other carriageway assets within CYC
and in accordance with the HIAMP principles, noting
that currently the prioritisation process does not
bring any works at this location into the funded
element of the programme. The HIAMP also
includes the annual survey which is used to prioritise
capital expenditure for all carriageway assets across
the CYC area, noting that currently the prioritisation
process does not bring any works at this location
into the funded element of the programme. Finally,
the implementation of this option would ensure
compliance
with the statutory duties of the Highways Authority.



43.

44.

Page 4

TSAR Traffic Signal Refurbishment — Junction of Malton
Road / New Lane (10:32)

Officers confirmed that the item had come forward due to the
need to replace the life expired traffic signal equipment and
outlined the options and cost of proposals to improve the
junction. The Executive Member considered the options and
agreed to support Option C which he noted had the support
Ward Members. Option C would introduce an additional Toucan
Crossing for pedestrians. The Executive Member recognised
this option did not improve cycle provisions and noted that
future work on New Lane could include improvements.

Resolved:

I. Approved progression of the scheme to detailed
design and construction, based on Option C
‘Renewal of Traffic Signal Equipment with additional
Toucan Crossing Introduction’.

Reason: In order to progress the design and construction of
the TSAR scheme at Malton Road / New Lane.

Speed Limit Traffic Regulation Order Amendments (10:40)

The Executive Member considered the investigations carried out
into requests for changes to several speed limits. He agreed for
no implementations on Haxby Road, Foss Park Hospital, Hull
Road, Black Bull to Tranby Avenue, and Burdyke Avenue.

The Executive Member also agreed to not implement on B1222
Naburn Church to Moreby Lodge but asked that officers
continue to review and discuss with relevant parties the
introduction of additional warning signs. B1224 Rufforth — North-
Western approach was also agreed for no implementation be
advertised but asked that officers keep this under review and
discuss with relevant parties the introduction of countdown signs
to the speed limit change.



Page 5

The Executive Member considered and agreed to the
recommendations for advertisement on Sutton Road, Wigginton
Extend 40mph, A59 Upper Poppleton, Montague Road Estate,
Bishopthorpe, Haxby Road (Clarence Gardens), and Wetherby
Road Rufforth (Primary School) 20mph and extend the 20mph
zone to include the streets Maythorpe, Laborum, View tree
Close, and Middlewood Close. Finally the Executive Member
also asked officers to advertise Bradley Lane. He noted the
recommendation to not implement which officers noted was
because enforcement rather than speed changes would likely
address concerns, but noted that due to a fatality in 2019 he
wished to follow the request from Ward Members.

Resolved:

I. No change be implemented at the following sites
(details shown on plans in Annex C):

e Haxby Road, Foss Park Hospital (Origin -
CYC/Foss Park Hospital; YSJU - 95 Alive
Campaign);

e Hull Road, Black Bull to Tranby Avenue
(Origin - local resident);

e Burdyke Avenue (Origin - Ward Councillor
and a local resident);

e B1222 Naburn Church to Moreby Lodge
(Origin — Ward Councillor and a local
business) but keep under review and
discuss with relevant parties the
introduction of additional warning signs;

e B1224 Rufforth - North-Western approach
(Origin - Ward Councillor) but keep under
review and discuss with relevant parties the
introduction of countdown signs to speed
limit change.

Reason: Because the road environment is not consistent with
a lower speed limit and there is little prospect of
achieving a reduction in vehicle speeds.

ii. Agreed to Advertise a revised speed limit for the
following sites (details shown on plans in Annex C):
e Sutton Road, Wigginton Extend 40mph
(Origin - local residents/business);



45.

Page 6

e A59 Upper Poppleton Extend 40mph (Origin
- Ward Councillor);

¢ Montague Road Estate, Bishopthorpe
20mph Zone (Origin - local resident);

e Haxby Road (Clarence Gardens) 20mph
(Origin - local resident);

e Wetherby Road Rufforth (Primary School)
20mph (Origin - Parish and Ward
Councillors) and extend the 20mph zone to
include the streets Maythorpe, Laborum,
View tree Close, and Middlewood Close;

e Bradley Lane, Rufforth (Origin — Ward
Councillor).

Reason: Because the indications are these are appropriate
speed limits due to the surrounding environment, to
respond to residents’ concerns and to reduce the
risk of traffic incidents and injuries.

Active Travel Programme — Project Progress (11:23)

The Executive Member considered St Georges Field Crossing
proposal and noted that the proposal should assist pedestrians
crossing from St Georges Field Car Park. He acknowledged the
minor impact on traffic that a new crossing could have and
officers confirmed that crossing times at traffic lights were
managed from the Council’s control centre. The Executive
Member also noted the desire for far side indicators and asked if
countdown crossing indicators could be installed and officers
confirmed this could be considered as part of a wider scheme.

The Executive Member also approved the proposed
Skeldergate scheme noting it would be an improvement to the
cycle route. He discussed the visibility of the buildouts in the
road and it was confirmed visibility would be considered by the
design team in the next phase.

Resolved:

I.  Approved Option 1 - Approve the proposed St
Georges Field Crossing scheme and scheme



46.

Page 7

delivery arrangements described within this report
and presented in Annex A of this document.

Reason: This option achieves the scheme objectives and is
affordable within assigned budgets. Timing of the
installation will be co-ordinated with the Castle
Gateway development. Traffic is predicted to not be
significantly impacted, and the single-stage element
of the crossing makes transition from pedestrian
crossingto’ Toucan’ crossing achievable.

Resolved:

ii. Approved Option 2 - Approve the proposed
Skeldergate scheme and scheme delivery
arrangements described within this report and
presented in Annex E of this document.

Reason: This option achieves the core aim of the scheme,
which is to “improve safety, amenity and
accessibility for cyclists on the route along
Skeldergate, and to reduce and/or remove conflict at
buildouts” .

Permanent Traffic Regulation Order for One way traffic on
Coppergate (with contraflow provision for cyclists) (11:42)

Officers outlined the proposal to make the temporary traffic
regulation order (TTRO) previously introduced in 2020 for
Coppergate permanent. It was noted that four in five responses
to the Council’s consultation had been in favour of a permanent
order for Coppergate. The Executive Member welcomed the
report and the responses to the advertisement, he agreed to
make the temporary restrictions permanent and asked officers
review the impact on York’s bus network due to displacement.

Resolved:

I. Approved the recommendation to make the
temporary restrictions permanent.

Reason: To help reduce vehicle movements and minimise the



Page 8

pedestrian and vehicle conflict in the street; and to
improve levels of safety, whilst still allowing for two
way cycle travel to continue.

Clir A D’Agorne, Executive Member for Transport
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.48 am].



Page 9 Agenda ltem 4

COUNCIL

Decision session 17™" January 2023
Executive Member for Transport

Report of the Director of Environment, Transport and Planning
Acknowledgement of Petitions

Summary

1. The purpose of this paper is to acknowledge and address a number of
petitions that have been submitted to Highways and Transport. A summary
of the petitions can be found in Annex A.

Recommendations

2. The Executive Member is asked to note the receipt of the petitions and to
review the recommendations against each petition below:

(i) Improve the footway running to north side of Field Lane from
its junction with Church Lane to Sussex Road so that it is
wide enough for wheelchair and buggy users and for 2
people to pass without having to walk on the grass verge

To note progress on this item in terms of hedge management and
exploration of footway scheme.

(i) Requesting permanent funding for the number 11 bus from
Bishopthorpe.

Responded to at the November 2022 Executive meeting. No
further action required.

(ili) Installation of a pedestrian crossing to allow safe crossing to
all between Fairfield Croft and Fairfield Drive in Skelton.

To note progress on this item. In terms of further review.



Page 10

(iv) Moor Lane and Princess Road in Strensall, seeking to have
these roads fully resurfaced.

To note progress on this item in terms of further inspection and
review.

(v) The council is asked to provide options for a Low Traffic
Neighbourhood to reduce through traffic on residential
streets in this area (Westminster Road, Greencliffe Drive and
The Avenue) 7 on the waiting list, 2 or 3SLTN

To note that this item will be added to the lists of interventions to
be considered at an Executive Member Decision session in the
later in the year.

(vi) Action to tackle the problems of vehicles using St Benedict
Road as a'rat run'.

To note that this item will be added to the lists of interventions to
be considered at an Executive Member Decision session in the
later in the year.

The application of parking permits (resident parking scheme) on
Highcliffe Court

To note that this item will be added to the lists of interventions to
be considered at an Executive Member Decision session in the
later in the year.

Executive member for Transport to agree a scheme for closure to
through traffic for the old village, Huntington

To note that this item will be added to the lists of interventions to
be considered at an Executive Member Decision session in the
later in the year.

Reason:
To respond to residents’ concerns and implement, if possible, the
appropriate measure.



Page 11

Background

3. A number of petitions have been submitted to the Council within the scope
of the portfolio of the Executive Member of Transport. A summary of each
petition is shown in Annex A. In some cases there is ongoing or related
work and this is referred to in the report.

4. One of the petitions is a request related to maintenance of the Highway.
The prioritisation of Highway Maintenance is subject to an annual condition
survey and along with other factors provide a ranking for each street in
terms of intervention. The highest ranked streets are then prioritised for the
limited funding available for Highway maintenance. It is possible that
maintenance hasn’t been undertaken on a particular street because it does
not rank high enough. There is a risk that initial analysis of the petition
leads to the same conclusion that the street is not high enough priority for
an intervention, however, in each case there will be a commitment to
discuss further with Ward councillors.

5. Requests for resident parking have increased in the last 2-3 years. 14
requests have been taken to a conclusion and 3 further areas awaiting to
be implemented in the coming months. This increase in demand has
resulted in an increase in the waiting list for investigating new requests.
Each request will be investigated in the order the request was made,
except in unusual circumstances or where 2 or more requests are adjacent
to one another and can be taken forward as one.

6. In addition, depending on circumstances at the time, the extent of the
consultation area may be extended beyond the area the petition came
from. However, if this is done we would still respect the majority view of
residents in the extended area before recommending to take a scheme
forward or not for those residents.

7. More recently petitions have been received in areas where Low Traffic
Neighbourhoods (“LTN”") have been requested. Streets are often described
as “rat runs”. These cases will be managed by the same resource
managing resident parking cases.

8. A report will be brought to the Executive Member Decision Session in
February 2023 outlining the resident parking schemes are outstanding (to
date as a result of this report, there are 7) and the outstanding requests for
measures relating to LTNs or where a street/streets have been identified
as a “rat run” (to date there are 4). The Executive Member will asked to



Page 12

prioritise the schemes in totality and these will then be given indicative
dates for progression.

9. The Petitions in this report are as follows (a summary is provided in Annex
A):

(i) Improve the footway running to north side of Field Lane from its
junction with Church Lane to Sussex Road so that it is wide
enough for wheelchair and buggy users and for 2 people to pass
without having to walk on the grass verge

10. There are 68 signatures on this petition. A site plan can be found in
Annex B. Work is ongoing around the management of the hedge in this
area with the land owner. The hedge was trimmed in December and a
schedule of maintenance is being sought from the landowner. A scheme
will be explored to make improvements to the footway in any event.

(i) Requesting permanent funding for the number 11 bus from
Bishopthorpe.

11. There are 1,235 signatures on this petition. Discussions between
officers and First York have established that service 11 is not currently
under threat of cancellation, however a slightly reduced service frequency
is likely to be required from early 2023 in order to improve reliability during
the ongoing driver shortage.

12. This was reported in the November Executive Bus Network review
report. No further action will be taken in response to this petition.

(iii) Installation of a pedestrian crossing to allow safe crossing to all
between Fairfield Croft and Fairfield Drive in Skelton.

13. There are 118 signatures on this petition. A plan of the location can be
found in Annex C. The installation of a toucan crossing was considered
during the original discussions with the developer but it was not
conditioned. Discussions are being had with the Ward Councillor around
progressing some work in this area.

(iv) Moor Lane and Princess Road in Strensall, seeking to have these
roads fully resurfaced.

14. There are 114 signatures on this petition. A plan of the location can be
found in Annex D.



Page 13

15. There are schemes proposed both these streets but as they have
not been identified for urgent works as they are not near to any’ trigger’
sites such as schools or doctors they only score a 4 so have not been
prioritised for work this year. A scheme may be possible in the 2024/25
programme. Additional inspection will be undertaken in these locations.

16.  Further discussion will be had with Ward councillors to identify any
further evidence for consideration in prioritisation and whether a
scheme can be achieved through Ward funding.

(v) The council is asked to provide options for a Low Traffic
Neighbourhood to reduce through traffic on residential streets in
this area (Westminster Road, Greencliffe Drive and The Avenue) 7
on the waiting list, 2 or 3LTN

17. There are 33 signatures on this petition. A plan of the location can be
found in Annex E. It is proposed to manage this as described above as an
LTN scheme and added to the list for consideration. The list will be
prioritised at the Executive Member for Transport decision session later in
the year.

(vi) Action to tackle the problems of vehicles using St Benedict Road
as a'rat run'.

18. There are 49 signatures on this petition. A plan of the location can be
found in Annex F. It is proposed to manage this as described above as an
LTN scheme and added to the list for consideration. The list will be
prioritised at the Executive Member for Transport decision session later in
the year.

(vii) The application of parking permits (resident parking scheme) on
Highcliffe Court

19. There are 25 responses within the petition requesting that the street
becomes a residents parking zone. Annex G is a plan showing the
location and existing residents parking zones. We currently have 6 areas
on the waiting list (including this area) and this will be number 7 on the list.
The list will be prioritised at the Executive Member for Transport decision
session later in the year.



Page 14

(viii) Executive member for Transport to agree a scheme for closure to
through traffic for the old village, Huntington

20. There are 69 signatures on this petition. A plan of the location is
included in Annex H. It is proposed to manage this as described above as
an LTN scheme and added to the list for consideration. The list will be
prioritised at the Executive Member for Transport decision session later in
the year.

21. A recent accident has occurred at the northern end of Old Village. Work
IS ongoing to identify any short term measures that can be implemented to
mitigate any issues that are identified. This will run in advance of the
exploration of any closure scheme. Residents have proposed options
including a closure immediately to the south of Church Lane and speed
cushions to slow traffic entering and exiting the corner at the location of the
accident. These will be considered when the work is progressed.

Council Plan

22. This report is supportive of the following priorities in the Council Plan

which focuses on key outcomes that include:
e Good health and wellbeing
e  Getting around sustainably and

e A greener and cleaner City of York Council safe communities and

culture for all.

Implications
Financial

23. There are no direct financial implications resulting from the report
recommendations. Any financial impact of each petition outcome will be
considered as part of future reports.

Human Resources (HR)

24. There are no implications around the decisions in this report.



Page 15

Legal

25. There are no direct legal implications resulting from the report
recommendations. Any legal impact of each petition outcome will be
considered as part of future reports.

Equalities

26. The Council recognises its Public Sector Equality Duty under Section
149 of the Equality Act 2010 (to have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited conduct;
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and foster good
relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it in the exercise of a public authority’s
functions. Equalities Impact assessments will be carried out where work is
taken forward on schemes as a result of this paper.

Crime and Disorder

27. There are no implications around the decisions in this report.
Information Technology (IT)

28. There are no implications around the decisions in this report.
Property

29. There are no implications around the decisions in this report.
Other

30. There are no other implications identified.

Risk Management

31. The risks associated with the delivery of the outcomes of this report with
respect to responding to petitions will be managed in each individual
projects.



Page 16

Contact Details

Chief Officer Responsible for the

Author: report:
Dave Atkinson James Gilchrist
Head of Highways and Director of Transport, Planning and
Transport, Environment
Highways and Transport
Report . |Date 06/01/2023
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Financial Implications
Jayne Close
Principal Accountant

Legal Implications
Cathryn Moore
Corporate Business Partner (Legal)

Wards Affected: All wards All | X

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers: N/A

Abbreviations:

DfT — Department for Transport
LTN — Low Traffic Neighbourhood

Annexes

Annex A: Petitions summary

Annex B: Field Lane

Annex D: Moor Lane, Princess Road

Annex E: Westminster Road, Greencliffe drive, The Avenue
Annex F: St. Benedict Road

Annex G: Highcliffe Court

Annex H: Old Village, Huntington



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19

Annex A: Petitions summary

Petition type No of
Signatures
() Improve the footway | Petition presented by 68
running to north side | Andrews Mortimer on
of Field Lane from its | the 4™ August 2022
junction with Church
Lane to Sussex Road
so that it is wide
enough for
wheelchair and buggy
users and for 2
people to pass
without having to walk
on the grass verge
(i) Requesting Petition presented by 1,235
permanent funding for | Carole Green on
the number 11 bus behalf of residents of
from Bishopthorpe. Bishopthorpe and
along the route of the
number 11 bus to the
Executive on the 6%
October 2022.
(i) Installation of a | Petition presented by 118
pedestrian crossing to | Clir Hook on behalf of
allow safe crossing to | the residents of
all between Fairfields | Skelton on the 20™
Croft and Fairfields October 2022
Drive, Skelton.
(iv) Moor Lane and | Petition presented by 114

Princess Road in
Strensall, seeking to
have these roads fully
resurfaced.

ClIr Fisher on behalf
of residents of Moor
Lane and Princess
Road on the 20%
October 2022




Page 20

(v) The council is asked | Petition presented by 33
to provide options for | Cllr Myers on behalf
a Low Traffic of residents of
Neighbourhood to Westminster Road,
reduce through traffic | Greencliffe Drive and
on residential streets | The Avenue on the
in this area 15" December 2022.
(Westminster Road,
Greencliffe Drive and
The Avenue)
(vi) Action to tackle | Petition presented by 49
the problems of Cllr Baker on behalf
vehicles using St of residents of the
Benedict Road as a Bishopthorpe Road
'rat run'. area on the 15"
December 2022.
(vii) The application | Petition presented by 25
of parking permits Megan Briggs and
(resident parking Peter Martin on behalf
scheme) on Highcliffe | of residents of
Court Highcliffe Court on
the 18™ October 2022
(viii) Executive Petition presented by 69

member for Transport
to agree a scheme for
closure to through
traffic for the old
village, Huntington

ClIr Cullwick on behalf
of residents of Old
Village, Huntington in
October 2022.




Page 21

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Annex B: Field lane

r

oy
‘i
Fd
//j r Q>
L
ry
/ {
;f ,—\_\ o
\ a._,.-"lr
o
w ,\ \‘ f/%
S, h O
\
> Q /oy
?}Qri g, gy, ©.Crown copyright and.database rights 2022 Ordnance Survey: 100020818
Date: 03 Jan 2023

Author: City of York Council

0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.2 0.25
Scale: 1:2,500 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 23

Annex C Fairfields Drive YORK

CCCCCCC

Date: 05 Jan 2023

Author: City of York Council

Scale: 1:2,500 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

\ s
2 CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Annex D: Princess Road/Moor lane

o T AR
§ls &y '"ngmg 0 q, 5

i =l I

";'-a'iltkirlnisnll'| o E’

rtrol e

chool g:?
£

B -1 ! -‘.__* # 'al.*
T _-\._"_‘Ef = "jl’l'lE' Q\Fk

e Sepif Clib
o = & 4

:rﬁ r’ﬂ"*
4+ T o 4 1 g #
.o 1 L
+ 4. T
- 5 - . -
P
R I R g * =
-J .J\- -

- A o A

»
E L R I L B

o+ g Vst
. e T R - 2. "

‘%-’2::::::::: PR -

© Crown cop)ﬁjri fit and
L |

o'
o=
()
o
F O
(]
@
="
@,
0
=
Un
N
N,
N-
©)
-
o
D
Sh
o
&
(28
=
=
@
(N
3
Sl.
IlCS

Date 03 Jan 2023

Author: City of York Council 0

0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5

Scale: 1:7,000 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 27

YORK

COUNCIL

Annex E: Westminster road

J—“‘\"‘ CITY OF
N

N

.
.sf?
o W)
o gl
" N £
5.*" ©.Crown copyright and database rights%@ZZ Ordﬁr}ance Survey: 100020818
Date: 03 Jan 2023
Author: City of York Council

0 0.05 0.1 0.15 0.2 0.25

Scale: 1:2,500 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 29

2—‘"\5‘ CITY OF
Annex F: St Benedict Road YORK
g COUNCIL

SRR N

S 3 A
& | NN
A A " .
5 b
)
)"( b g\
_ g
8N /
\}‘
a
i ,@
B
i =
5 =t
=
= =
=
q ok =
e
== =lT=
Eail == =
Date: 03 Jan 2023
Author: City of York Council
0 0.05 0.1 0.15
Scale: 1:2,500 km

0.2




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31

Annex G: Highcliffe Court

\ s
> CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

[

Clifton Green

¥

"
.

¢

-

\\ \\
F }\gs helter.
Y -

T N
-

f-’_,;p ;\ “\\\
b e "
1,

Fern Hole e

<@

h

—
H\\
5 b

1 "
-

I
¢

y.

L
L

ra

-~
12§
|
-
o

h,
o
A
1
SoLt
i a ¥

Half @ 12887 "G
2R

% i AT ciise .
Grown c-zgpyng tan atﬁ aszifr,lg‘ts Or

Morth

Date:

Author:

Scale:

03 Jan 2023

City of York Council

1:1,250

0 0.025

km

0.05 0.075 0.1

0.125




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33

CITY OF

Annex H: Old Village, Huntington YORK

COUNCIL
&

S el e las Y
1_—_| El g|:| uf“?'ﬁ EEI:'EDEIG——
NG uﬂmp;émuu s
Bm (E. (BB O,
B-0z0_B O

Dg] DGDUDDD O,

TR
Vool

I

=]

1

1

O

q% Linden Close
0

O

a0
ey
| e

i
I::E:I_r.‘.u"'L

!

=" GWD %

D %DU%DD[EEFDDD‘?:

kKeith Avenye

V, ,wﬂ;, b HDQ QDDDDDF%DDDD
ﬂ%ﬂhgww L0 0 o
8 e d/

|:|ujj Ee ﬂmg (':150 DDQ}O c:

O Ooom [ Lireenacres

0 @ :Ifi
Dﬂ”mﬂbg \ K %
bl ‘Eﬂldlld '-'a ” Q% Q'@c% 5 ;Do\
19

” Efoiﬁrown copyﬁgl_h'It and daﬁ:Pase rlghts P22 O

Date: 09 Jan 2023

Author: City of York Council

0 0.08 0.16 0.24

Scale: 1:4,000 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35 Agenda ltem 5

COUNCIL

17 January 2023

Decision Session
Executive Member for Transport

Report to the Corporate Director of Economy and Place Directorate

Consideration of Representations received in response to
advertised proposals for speed limit amendments

Summary

1. Consideration of representations received, in support of and
objection to advertised proposals to amend speed limits.

Recommendations

2. Itis recommended that the Executive Member consider the original
proposals together with representations received and the
recommendations made, and make a decision from the available
options which are:

3. Implement a revised speed limit as advertised for the following sites
(details shown on plans in Annex C):

e The Hollies, Stockton on the Forest 20mph
e A1079, Dunnington 40mph
¢ Northfield Lane, Poppleton 30mph
¢ North Lane, Huntington 30mph
e Wheldrake Lane, Elvington 30mph
e Sim Balk Lane, Bishopthorpe 40mph
e Askham Bryan site 1 30mph
e Askham Bryan site 2 40mph and 30mph
e \Wheldrake Lane, Elvington 30mph
e Naburn 30mph
e The Revival Estate 20mph
e Towthorpe 30mph
e Shipton Road 30mph

Reason: Because the indications are these are appropriate speed
limits due to the surrounding environment.



Page 36

Background

4. Annex A outlines where there have been requests for changes to
the existing speed limit.

5. The Department for Transport (“DfT”) circular 01/2013 “Setting Local
Speed Limits” has been used to assist in investigating the initial
requests. It is important to bear in mind that merely posting a lower
speed limit does not result in a reduction in vehicle speeds. This is
because drivers drive at a speed they consider appropriate to the
prevailing conditions and road environment. This is reflected in the
DIT key point reproduced below:

“Speed limits should be evidence-led and self-explaining
and seek to reinforce people’s assessment of what is a
safe speed to travel. They should encourage self-
compliance. Speed limits should be seen by drivers as the
maximum rather than target speed.”

Posting a speed limit (without other engineering measures) well
below the current prevailing speeds is therefore very likely to result in
an unmet expectation in the eyes of those requesting the reduction
and a failure of the authority to implement a successful scheme. In
addition, because the enforcement of speed limits can only be carried
out by the police there would likely be additional calls/demands on
their limited resources to catch and take enforcement action against
drivers not complying with the lower limit. Enforcement is unlikely to
be considered a high priority when allocating resources. Hence the
highway authority has a responsibility to ensure the speed limits
introduced do not depend on regular enforcement for ongoing
compliance.

6. There are 3 national speed limits:
e 30mph on roads with streetlights
e 60mph on single carriageway roads
e 70mph on dual carriageways

However, these are not always appropriate for all roads and it is
down to the local traffic authority to set local speed limits in situations
where local needs and conditions suggest a speed limit which is
different from the respective national speed limit. The general advice
on what speed limit to use for urban and rural roads is set out in
Tables 1 and 2 in Annex B. It should also be noted that where a
speed limit varies from a national speed limit there is a strict
requirement for the appropriate signs to be displayed at the correct
intervals as otherwise enforcement cannot be carried out.



Page 37

7. For each location information is provided (see Annex C) on the
current vehicle speed limits, a brief description of the local
environment, a view on if a lower speed limit is viable and likely
cost.

Options for Consideration

8. Option 1 —Take no further action on an item. This is put forward
where it is considered the road environment is such that it is very
unlikely to achieve any real change in driver behaviour by posting a
lower limit.

9. Option 2 — Confirm the change in the speed limit as outlined in
Annex C. This is recommended where it is considered there is a
reasonable prospect of achieving a reduction in vehicle speeds.

10. The proposals and representations received, together with officer
recommendations are detailed by location (see Annex C).

11. Ward Councillors have received this information and, in some
cases, have commented on the proposal(s) and officer
recommendations. Any comments received have been included
within the Annex for that proposal.

Consultation

12. The consultation was undertaken on 30" September 2022, a copy
of the Notice of Proposal (Annex D), a covering letter and plan
showing the proposal was post to all affected properties. The
advertised proposals for amendment of the speed limits were also
advertised in the local press and notices put up on the roads
affected.

13. All emergency services, haulier associations, Parish Councils and
Ward Councillors received details on advertised proposals.
Analysis

14. Officer comments and analysis are included on the individual
Proposals in Annex C.

Council Plan

15. The proposals and recommendations contribute to the Council’s
draft Council Plan of:

e Getting around sustainably

e Good health and well being



Page 38

e Safe communities

Implications

Financial - The recommended changes put forward, estimated at
£8k, can be funded through the annual budget set aside for new
signs and lines.

Human Resources (HR) — None.

Equalities — The Council recognises its Public Sector Equality Duty
under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (to have due regard to the
need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any
other prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons
who do not share it and foster good relations between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not
share it in the exercise of a public authority’s functions).

The Authority recognises that certain groups of people will benefit
from a reduction in a speed limit through the improvements in safety
that lower speeds provide. Those groups include those who may be
considered vulnerable by virtue of age (e.g. young or old non-drivers),
those with young children walking/cycling to school, shops or leisure
activities, those with physical or mindful disabilities, and those whose
social position is such they have never driven or travelled in a private
or other motor vehicle, or infrequently do so. It is also to be hoped
that lower speed limits will reduce highway anxiety and encourage all
residents and visitors of all backgrounds to be more confident and
active in using our roads, cycleways and footpaths. Such outcomes
contribute to the Council’s draft Council Plan mentioned in paragraph
15 above.

This rationale is determined against the following groups:

* Age — Positive, the reduction in vehicle speeds will reduce the risk of
accidents owing to reduced capacity of older or young road users.

+ Disability — Positive, the reduction in vehicle speeds will reduce the
risk of accidents owing to reduced capacity for those road users with
physical or mindful disabilities;

* Gender — Neutral;

» Gender reassignment — Neutral;

» Marriage and civil partnership— Neutral;

* Pregnancy and maternity - Neutral;

* Race — Neutral;

* Religion and belief — Neutral;

» Sexual orientation — Neutral;

* Other socio-economic groups including :

eCarer - Neutral,



Page 39

eow income groups — Positive, the reduction in vehicle speeds will
reduce the risk of accidents owing to a lack of experience for those
who never or infrequently travel in a motor vehicle;

eVeterans, Armed Forces Community— Neutral.

Legal —

The proposals would require an amendment to the York Speed Limit
Order 2014. The provisions of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
& the Local Authorities Traffic Orders (procedure) (England & Wales)
Regulations 1996 would apply.

The statutory consultation process for Traffic Regulation Orders
requires public advertisement through the placing of public notices
within the local press and on-street. It is a requirement for the Council
to consider any formal objections received within the statutory
advertisement period of 21 days.

Formal notification of the public advertisement is given to key
stakeholders including local Ward Members, Town and Parish
Councils, Police and other affected parties.

The Council, as Highway Authority, is required to consider any
objections received after formal statutory consultation, which are
reported within this report, for consideration.

The Council has discretion to amend its original proposals if
considered desirable, whether or not in the light of any objections or
comments received, as a result of such statutory consultation. If any
objections received are accepted, in part or whole, and/or a decision
Is made to modify the original proposals, if such a modification is
considered to be substantial, then steps must be taken for those
affected by the proposed modifications to be further consulted.

Any public works contracts required at each of the sites as a result of
a change to the speed limit (e.g. signage, road markings, etc.) must
be commissioned in accordance with a robust procurement strategy
that complies with the Council’'s Contract Procedure Rules and
(where applicable) the Public Contract Regulations 2015. Advice
should be sought from both the Procurement and Legal Services
Teams where appropriate.

Crime and Disorder - None
Information Technology (IT) - None
Property - None

Other - None



Page 40

Risk Management

14 In compliance with the Council’s risk management strategy there is
a low risk associated with the recommendations in this report.



Page 41

Contact Details

Authors: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Peter Marsland James Gilchrist
Traffic Projects Officer Assistant Director Transport
Dept. Transport
Tel No. 01904 552616 Date
approved:
17/01/2023
Specialist Implications Officer(s): None.
Financial: Legal:
Name: Jayne Close Name: Gerard Allen
Title: Accountant Title: Senior Solicitor
Tel No: 01904 554175 Tel No: 01904 552004

Specialist Implications Officer(s)
None.

Wards Affected: Heworth without, Strensall, Derwent, All | |
Rural West York, Huntington& New Earswick,

Heslington, Dringhouses & Woodthorpe, Clifton, Skelton,

Rawcliffe & Clifton without, Wheldrake

For further information please contact the author of the report.

Background Papers: None.

Annexes:

Annex A Requests for Changes to the Speed Limit
Annex B Speed Limit Descriptions - Tables 1 and 2
Annex C Site Information, consultations responses, and

recommendations.

Annex D Notice of Proposal



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43

Annex A

Requests for Changes to the Speed Limit

Location

Existing speed limit

The Hollies, Stockton on the Forest

30mph built up area

A1079 Dunnington

60mph

Northfield Lane Upper Poppleton

60mph rural road

North Lane Huntington

60mph rural road

Sim Balk Lane

60mph rural road

Askham Bryan, A1237 Askham lane
roundabout to village

60mph rural road

Askham Bryan, A1237 Copmanthorpe
roundabout to village

60mph rural road

Naburn

60mph rural road

The Revival Estate, Dringhouses

30mph

Towthorpe

60mph rural road




This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B

Page 45

Speed Limit Descriptions
Table 1 Speed limits in urban areas — summary

Speed limit
(mph})

Where limit should apply

20
{including 20
mph zone)

In streets that are pnmanly residential and in other town or
city streets where pedestrian and cyclist movements are
high, such as around schools, shops, markets,
playgrounds and other areas, where motor vehicle
movement is not the primary function.

30

In other built-up areas (where motor vehicle movement is
deemed more important), with development on both sides
of the road.

40

On higher quality suburban roads or those on the outskirts
of urban areas where there is little development, with few
cyclists, pedestnans or equestrians.

On roads with good width and layout, parking and waiting
restrictions in operation, and builldings set back from the
road.

On roads that, wherever possible, cater for the needs of
non-motorised users through segregation of road space,
and have adequate footways and crossing places.

50

On dual carmageway ring or radial routes or bypasses that
have become partially built up, with little or no roadside
development.

Table 2 Speed limits for single carriageway roads® with a predominant
motor traffic flow function

Speed limit
(mph)

Where limit should apply:

60

Recommended for most high quality strategic A and B
roads with few bends, junctions or accesses.

50

Should be considered for lower quality A and B roads
that may have a relatively high number of bends,
junctions or accesses.

Can also be considered where mean speeds are below
50 mph, so lower limit does not interfere with traffic
flow.

40

Should be considered where there are many bends,
junctions or accesses, substantial development, a
strong environmental or landscape reason. or where
there are considerable numbers of vulnerable road

USers.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47

Annex C

Details of Proposals

Location: The Hollies, Stockton on the | 85" %ile speed: no data
Forest

Background information

A new short cul-de-sac development (boundary in red) off an existing
20mph zone (black boundary) outside a school. The road has also
recently become adopted highway. The length of new road does not
lend itself to speeds over 20mph. If not included in the 20mph zone
there would be requirement to install 30mph signs heading into the new
estate which would most likely be viewed as ridiculous and reflect poorly
on the local authority.

> />

Existing
20mph.zone

Detailé of rgsponses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022:
Responses in favour — 1; against — 0.

Supportive of the extension of the 20mph speed limit to The Hollies
which obviously avoids a ridiculous situation where the Hollies has a




Page 48

higher limit than the adjoining section of The Village -- however your
proposal mentions "introduction of the respective speed limit with
associated signage" - can you give more details on this signage and its
location in the street? (Has been provided).

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised: An appropriate approach
in the circumstances.

Location: A1079 Dunnington 85" %ile speed: As below.

Background information

This is part of the primary road network York and Hull route. The existing
speed limit is 60mph and this reduces to 40mph as it passes the built-up
area of Dunnington that fronts on to the road. The request is for the
40mph to be extended further towards York in order that more drivers
will be travelling at that speed when they reach the partially built-up
area.

o < D :
NC PP

% 'EU'I'llllf.;U.'H £
B |A]| i %
P it ey | 60mph
40/60mph sign East West 40mph Limit East West [+ ¢
85% 44 46 85% 39 40 BT
Mean 39 40 |

Mean _ 34 34

Details of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022:
Responses in favour — 0; against — 4.




Page 49

| wish to object to the proposed speed limit reduction on the A1079. A
reduction to 40mph on this short section of Highway is not what was
requested by Dunnington PC or Kexby PC. Requests have been made
for a continuous 40mph speed limit along the full length of the CYC
section of the A1079 in effect linking the existing 40mph zones at
Dunnington with those at Kexby. Those requests have been made not
only with regard to road safety but to give drivers a clear and
unambiguous speed limit without confusing changes along a relatively
short section of road. To have a number of different speed limits, if
enforced by NYP, seems to create just the conditions for catching
drivers out to increase the chances of fines being issued whereas a
continuous speed limit removes these anomalies and leaves no excuses
should drivers be caught during enforcement. The current proposal by
CYC should be scrapped and the continuous 40mph speed limit as
requested by Dunnington PC and Kexby and Scoreby PC progressed to
implementation.

| wish to register an objection to the proposal to increase the 40mph
zone on the A1079. It is claimed that this proposal is due to “safety
concerns”. Who has raised the concerns is not made clear, nor is there
any indication of events occurring which might give rise to any concerns.
Having resided on the A1079 for 36 years, | do not consider that any
further restriction would be appropriate, and in fact could create further
problems for residents on the road. If the 40mph limit is extended, this
would tend to create even more of a “convoy” effect of the movement of
traffic along the A1079. This might then encourage motorists seeking to
exit residences on the road to try and exit into unsuitable spaces in the
line of traffic, resulting in accidents. It is very rare indeed for there to be
any incident along the section of road concerned ( based on 36 years
experience). | would urge the Director of Place to review the proposal
again, and hopefully to conclude that the proposal is not appropriate for
this location.

The Parish Council requests that the City of York Council progress with
reducing the speed limit from 60 mph to 40 mph along the two sections
of the A1079 from the Scrap Box layby (point A) to Thornbeck (point B)
and the village boundary of Dunnington (point C) to the village boundary
of Kexby (point D). (See the attached map)

This will mean that the whole length of the A1079 from the Grimston Bar




Page 50

roundabout to the village boundary at the east side of Kexby (Long
Lane) will be a continuous 40 mph speed limit.

This will improve road safety along this whole length of the A1079 by
removing speed limit anomalies, and confusion, on what is a very busy
arterial route to and from the A64 and York. It will benefit those
residential properties, farms and other businesses along this length
allowing an easier and safer means of access to and from their
properties which will also benefit the road users from a safety point of
view as well.

This request will also complement our request to reduce the speed limit
from 60 mph to 40 mph on York Road leading from the A1079 to the
village boundary of Dunnington.

It will mean that all traffic entering and leaving the A1079, passing
through the Parish, and going to and from the village, via York Road and
Common Road, will be doing so in a consistent manner on roads all with
the same 40 mph speed limit.

The request to reduce the speed limit from 60 mph to 40 mph on the
section of the A1079 between the village boundary of Dunnington and
the village boundary of Kexby, which is partly in our Parish and partly in
Kexby and Scoreby Parish, also supports a similar request from Kexby
and Scoreby Parish in respect of this particular section of the A1079.

It will also assist in monitoring and managing the traffic in a much more
efficient way.

Kexby & Scoreby Parish Council fully support the below objection
submitted by Dunnington Parish Council. Our joint request has always
been for a continuous 40mph speed limit from Kexby to Grimston Bar.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised: The representations
made concern a wider extent of speed limit reduction, which can be kept
under review but should not affect the implementation of this section.




Page 51

Location: Northfield Lane Upper Poppleton | 85" %ile speed: As below.

Background information

Whilst the general character of the road sits with the definition of an
unrestricted rural road (60mph) this is a dead-end route that only accesses a
few properties and two business parks. The section of road adjacent to the
Park and Ride site and garden centre currently has a posted speed limit of

40nj_ph.

Details of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022:
Responses in favour — 1; against — none.

You might have seen the press release which shows how pleased | am with
the possible introduction of a 30mph limit in Northfield Lane (which | have
been requesting for a long time).

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. The Implementation will help
encourage safe use of the recently introduced cycle and walking path.




Page 52

Location: North Lane, Huntington | 85" %ile speed: As below.

Background information

This is a rural road with few properties or accesses along the bulk of its
length. The small built-up section is too short for effective enforcement
action to be carried out (it normally needs to be in excess of 400m long).
However as there is a junction with the A64 at one end and a bend in the
road close to the other end of the built-up section there is a case for
posting a 30mph speed limit that the physical features of the road layout
and the adjacent properties should encourage a degree of driver
compliance rather than them choosing to excessively increase their
speed after turning off the A64.

ST b e ] - .9,
O Setves e _ }

= ¢

I

s Yy 7 e’ O

| 60mph Limit East West North Lane | . - Built up
| 85% 51 52 : 4 section
Mean 44 45 \'| 4% |
.\__\l\ .

I L 1
. \ - = [ ¢ T — o b
_;ﬂ' ] L ] .

ISefaiIs of respohses from Jcpoﬁsu'ltation 01 to—'2.1~/.10/‘2‘”022:

Responses in favour — 2; against — none.

Many thanks for the letter explaining the proposed introduction of the
speed limit. | welcome this new speed limit as cars do speed down this
road on a regular basis. However, my questions that | would like
responding to are:

- how is this going to be managed as no-one takes notice of the 40mph
limit at the top end currently - in fact the sign is completely hidden by
overgrown bushes and has been for several years!!!




Page 53

- there is currently a 7.5T limit on the road - however lorries, wagons and
coaches use this route daily. As a resident is it very concerning when
your house is shuddering due to the inappropriate traffic down the road. |
have lived there for 4 years and have never once seen this being
policed/ managed. How do you intend to support the local residents with
enforcing this restriction?

Thank you for the notice regarding the 30mph speed limit proposal on
North Lane which | support completely. Living on the bend we have had
accidents and near misses with drivers coming round too fast and this
will make the lane safer for all.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. The responses indicate
the level of impact for local residents and implementation will make this
a safer location for their access onto and from North Lane.




Page 54

Location: Sim Balk Lane 85" %ile speed: As below.

Background information

Approximately 750m long. Lightly built up over much of its length from the
existing 30mph position at either end. Whilst the character of the road does
fit the general description for an unrestricted rural road it is quite a short
length and there are 3 accesses used by students and cyclists accessing
the York to Selby cycle route. Given the short length it is reasonable to

assume there\ls potentlal for a reduction in vehicle speeds of a few mph.

A 7 5 , 3 »"‘:i .’:;_-"':'.'.’-lf‘f"”“ :
>
60mph Limit East West B i
85% 42 45 Aot o 7 s
Mean 37 38
' il

7
L5 RO &
e 4 Y v, r .
/Y
h

B A . QU LA B L AT
SR 29 . G A 5( SXaf LN, T -

Bl Jmpthorpe

Details of responses from )é':onsultation 01 to 21/10/2022:
Responses in favour — 1; against - none.

Thank you for your letter of 30 September 2022 regarding the proposed
introduction of a 40mph speed limit on Sim Balk Lane. | am writing to say
how delighted we are at this proposal.

Cars, lorries and buses race up and down the bridge on Sim Balk Lane over
the A64. The drive to our house, as well as to Middlethorpe Business Park,
Is at the bottom of the bridge. | am always anxious when | have to stop to




Page 55

turn right into the drive. There is also the issue of the enormous lorries that
thunder up and down the road, day and night, as they use Sim Balk Lane to
pass through the village on their way to their base on Acaster Airfield. It
would feel much safer to have a speed restriction for the sake of everyone's
safety.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. As the speed data bears out,
and that of my experience when driving this road, 40mph is an achievable
objective for traffic and compliments the 30mph at either end of this stretch
more appropriately.




Page 56

Location: Askham Bryan — 2 sites

85" %ile speed: No data.

Background information

Sitel |+

Site 1 — Approximately 1km long.
The character of the road is rural
between the existing 30mph
speed limit and the A1237. The
length of road and existing speed
surveys indicate there is no real
prospect of reduced vehicle
speeds being achieved. However
the start of the village 30mph
speed limit is very close to the
built up area and this could be
extended by 100m which may lead
to better compliance at the start of
the built up area.

Site 2 - Partially street lit around
the collage area hence this length
should be signed as a 30mph or
be in the TRO as unrestricted but
it isn’t and is therefore incorrect.
The remaining short length of road
heading into the village is rural in
character. Taking these factors
and the existing speeds recorded
into account it is reasonable to
assume there is scope for a
reduction in vehicle speeds of a
few mph if a 40pmh is introduced
from the roundabout to the 30mph
and extend the 30mph by 50m
from the existing start point near a
playground entrance.

Details of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022:

Responses in favour — 6; against — 2.

May | ask what national speed limit the highways says does apply along
this section of road at present? 60mph because it is a clearway or




Page 57

30mph because of the street lighting along this section? The last traffic
survey listed it as 30mph! | ask why the highways department want to
raise the speed limit to 40MPH along this section and their reasons for
doing so? | object most strongly to this increase. This section has heavy
daily pedestrian usage from the bus stop near the roundabout to the
College entrance by students of the college and villagers going to the
bus stop. If this increase goes ahead the highways department are
increasing dangers along this section of road and not reducing them.

| support your proposed speed limits into and out of the village however,
my own view is that it would be appropriate and sufficient to also impose
a 40 mph limit along Askham Bryan Lane.

| am also pleased that you propose introducing 30mph buffers around
Askham Bryan village, especially the one leading out of the village on
Askham Fields Lane. The previous chair of Askham Bryan Parish
Council asked me to get additional 30mph signs on Askham Fields Lane
to stop vehicles accelerating to 60 as soon as they saw the sign and
when they were well within the village proper, especially since the sign is
very near to the access to the playground. Extending the 30mph speed
should stop this happening — | hope!

You will have received some complaints about your proposal from a few
Askham Bryan residents, especially some who live in Askham Fields
Lane within the college boundary, wanting the limit beside the college to
be 30mph. This is because, at the recent public inquiry into the
permanent closure of the footpath blocked by the zoo in Askham Bryan
College, Alison Newbould said that it was perfectly safe to redirect
pedestrians onto the footpath alongside the highway because the speed
limit was 30mph as demonstrated by the streetlights. The residents and
| disputed her assertions, but she was adamant that she was correct.

Your proposed speed reduction proves that we were correct, but
residents would prefer the speed alongside Askham Bryan College to be
reduced to 30mph because that is what we were told and because
pedestrians are often forced into the highway due to cars being parked
on the footpath. | presume that the inspector made his decision to close
the footpath through the college on the basis that the speed was 30mph,
believing CYC officers over residents.




Page 58

| am in receipt of your note regarding the proposed changes to the
speed limit along Askham Fields Lane~ First of all let me say |
welcome your proposals and thank you for finally doing something
about the speed which traffic enters and leaves the village~ | have
campaigned to the Council for some time about this as I live in the
first~ or last~ house on Askham Fields Lane depending on whether you
are coming into the village from the College roundabout or leaving it~
and | can tell you the speed many vehicles pass my house is
dangerously well above the current speed limit~ they basically ignore
the speed limit signs~ For example ~and | have informed the Council
of this~ | followed a tractor pulling a fully loaded 13 tonne trailer
passed my house ~and the 30mph sign~~ entering the village at over
40 mph~ If a child had run out of the play park opposite my house that
tractor could not have stopped~ And when we did the village speed
check the local school bus was also clocked at 42mph in the 30 mph
speed zone~

And so my question is~ what will be done to monitor the speed of the
traffic~ | still firmly believe a ramp adjacent to the 30 mph sign and
one near the junction to Main Street would solve the problem~
However if this will not be implemented~ then illuminated speed
signs showing the speed of vehicles would help~ | fear that if just
ordinary 40 & 30 mph signs are put up they will be ignored just as
they are now.

| am writing to you regarding proposals for speed Limits on Askham
Fields Lane as indicated on the attached which we discussed at our
Parish Council meeting last night.

The total distance from the roundabout to Askham Bryan Main Street is
0.7 miles and the proposals would leave three different speed limits
along this stretch (30mph, then 40mph and then back to 30mph).

We feel that this leads to confusion about the correct speed limit and
drivers would struggle to comply due to the uncertainty caused.

We favour a simpler approach, i.e. 40mph from the roundabout, past the
turning for Askham Richard dropping to 30mph as you reach our
Recreational Area. There are no residential properties prior to the village
and don't see the need for the 30mph restriction on the earlier stretch,
we do not support a 30mph restriction past the college.

We request repeater signs at frequent intervals to ensure motorists are
clear about the speed limit as they make their journeys.

Having revisited the attached document, we wish to clarify that we
support the proposals as stated in paragraph 13 thus creating two speed
limits on Askham Fields Lane, 30mph from the southern kerb line of




Page 59

Main Street along Askham Fields Lane to a point 320m south of this
point and 40mph thereafter to the roundabout.

Further to our email below, at our meeting last month, we wish to restate
our position that we do not support a 30mph speed restriction by the
college and feel that a 40mph restriction as far as the village is not only
more appropriate, but also less confusing than multiple speed
restrictions.

Thank you for the communication regarding the above. Both residents
and the Parish Council have worked long and hard to extend any current
speed restriction for years so that this comes as a very welcome
proposal.

Any extension of the current 30mph will I hope be an improvement and
we would welcome any measures to actually enforce the speed
restriction. | also see that it is a proposal to restrict the speed to 40 mph
from the roundabout at the A64/1237 junction, has consideration been
taken that this runs directly past the Agricultural College (an education
establishment) many of which have 20 mph restrictions. Also between
the 40 mph and 30 mph will the speed limit remain at 60 (national speed
limit)?

| understand that Council is considering introducing a 40 miles per hour
speed limit on Askham Fields Lane, Askham Bryan, between the
roundabout controlled junction with the A64/A1237 and a point 320
metres south from the projected southern kerb line of Main Street, which
according to the Notice, if that Order is made, will revoke the existing
statutory speed limit for that stretch of road.

Please take this letter as a formal objection to that Order being made on
the part of the College, for the following reasons.

The College’s understanding is that the road from the roundabout
controlled junction with the A64/A1237 to a point just past the entrance
to the College is in fact subject to a 30 miles per hour speed limit. This is
confirmed by the presence of street lighting and lack of speed signage
along that stretch of road (Rule 124 of the Highway Code). This was also
confirmed to be the case at a recent Public Inquiry (Planning
Inspectorate ROW3275982), to which the Council was a party, as the
Order making Authority.

Paras 2.1 - 2.4 of the Highway Safety Assessment prepared for that
Inquiry states:

2.1 Askham Bryan College is a specialist land-based college located on
the west side of York as shown in Figure A1 Appendix A. It is bounded




Page 60

to the east by Askham Fields Lane, to the north by York Road and to the
south by the A64(T). To the east there are a range of fields in
agricultural use.

2.2 The college provides courses in agriculture, horticulture, and other
rural topics to around 5,000 students, both full time and part time. The
campus is quite large and includes working farms, a wide range of
buildings and car parks as shown at Figure A2 Appendix A.

2.3 The main access for staff, students, visitors and deliveries is from
Askham Fields Lane. There is also a vehicular access to York Road to
the Horticulture/ Arboricultural/Floristry area and from Askham Fields
Lane to the Equine Centre.

2.4 There are 14 private homes on a road, also called Askham Fields
Lane, which is served from the main college access.

Paras 2.8 - 2.11 of the Highway Safety Assessment prepared for that
Inquiry also states:

Askham Fields Lane

2.8 Askham Fields Lane has a north-south alignment and connects
Askham Bryan, a small village, with the A64(T) and the A1237 northern
bypass to York. Askham Fields Lane has a carriageway is 5.9m in width
in the vicinity of the college. There is a 2.2m wide footway, Image 2.1
refers, on the west (college) side of the road between the A64(T)/A1237
roundabout and the junction with the main collage access; on the east
side there is a grass verge. North of the college access there is a grass
verge of between 1.1m and 1.3m on the west side and a 1.2m to 1.3m
wide footway is on the east side all the way to the village.

2.9 Some 30m south and 45m north of the main college access there
are bus stops comprising a pole and flag sign with timetable information.
The stops are served by buses between Tadcaster, Easingwold and
York.

2.10 Askham Fields Lane has a system of street lighting between the
main collage access and the A64(T)/A1237 roundabout junction. North
of the college access Askham Fields Lane has no street lighting.

2.11 In the vicinity of the college access no speed limit signs were in
evidence, however 30mph signs are present at the southern entrance to
Askham Bryan village, with the National Speed limit indicated on the
reverse. The street lighting between

the college and the A1237/A64(T) roundabout under Sc81 of the Road
Traffic Regulation Act of 1984 means that this section is a restricted road
and automatically subject to a 30mph speed limit, unless changed by a
traffic regulation order and indicated by signs. It may be that there is an
order establishing a speed limit for this section of Askham Fields Lane
and the signs are missing. [my emphasis]

As you will no doubt be aware, it has been statistically proven that higher




Page 61

driving speeds lead to higher collision speeds and thus to more severe
injuries in the event of an accident.

For the safety of our students and staff who work at the College and who
commute using the bus and who walk along that stretch of road, | feel
that that stretch of road should in fact continue to be subject to a 30
miles per hour speed limit and not a 40 miles per hour speed limit, as
proposed.

The local Parish Council and local residents who live off Askham Fields
Lane also support a 30 miles per hour speed limit for that stretch of road
and | understand that they will be writing to you independently to confirm
this.

Please can you acknowledge receipt of this letter and that the College’s
objection has been noted.

Speeding continues to have a profound impact on this part of the village.
From the boundary of my property | am able to view the entire length of
the existing 30mph section of Askham Fields Lane and can verify that it
attracts both a high volume of through journeys and a significant number
drivers who totally disregard the speed limit when entering and
egressing the village. | do hope that the scheme, which I trust will
include appropriately sited 30mph and 40mph repeater signs, will help in
moderating the speed of some drivers.

Officer Comments: Implement as recommended at Site 1 which will
provide a ‘buffer’ area prior to the built-up area allowing a greater
prospect of traffic reducing speed prior to reaching it.

Implement the extension of the 30mph from the Village as advertised at
at Site 2 as this will allow traffic to sufficiently reduce speed prior to the
area by the playpark and residences. Implement a lesser restriction of
40mph to the beginning of the Street Lighting and correctly sign the
30mph from that location to the A64/A1237. As stated by some
objectors, there is street lighting which would indicate a Statutory 30mph
speed limit, but it appears that this has not previously been signed
correctly.




Page 62

Location: Naburn 85" %ile speeds: As below.

Background information The presence of the entry and exit
I T NN r to the York to Selby cycle /footway
(IR [N immediately to the north of the old

| Proposed _,,_» -~ |railway bridge, which is on the very
30mph edge of the village, along with the
= )IL 5 marina makes it reasonable to
60mph L|m|t (Nr Marlna) South North || assume that drivers will observe a
85% 41 41 reason for a lower limit and will
Mean 35 35 adjust their speed downwards.
lﬂ % N
Existing | g ]
30mph e T

. 30mph L|m|t South North
".4-85% 37 34
1 Mean 30 29

AL
'-..lf .
— Fach F

Detalls of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022:
Responses in favour — 1; against — none.

Naburn Parish Council very strongly supports this scheme and thanks you
for getting it through.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. There is no footpath in the
area of recommendation meaning users leaving the York/Selby foot/cycle
way have to use the road. The dip under the bridge is a feature that
generally results in traffic slowing at this location and implementation will
help protect those in residence and those visiting the marina whether on foot
or in vehicles.




Page 63

Location: The Revival Estate 85" %ile speed: No data

Background information

This is a modern estate designed to encourage low vehicle speeds. There is

no through route, hence most traffic will either be local residents,

visitors/deliveries to the properties or regular users choosing to park here for

the college. Whilst it is unlikely that posting a lower speed limit will influence

the actual speed of the regular road users in the estate, the area is similar to
nd the city.

L7
Details of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022~_
Responses in favour — 2; against - 2.

This is good news.

| have lived at 1, Teachers Close on the Estate since June 2021 living
previously in Osbaldwick on Bedale Avenue - this latter area had a 20 mph
speed limit implemented (except initially Tranby Avenue).

My observation from Osbaldwick is simply that it made no difference to those
in a hurry since there was no enforcement apparent.

The Revival Estate is slightly different in that the roads are shorter and
certainly feel narrower which is probably due to the amount of on road
parking - during the day partly by college students and in the evening / night
by residents returning from work. The level of parking is such that it almost
forces drivers to go slowly - | regard this as a benefit of the parking!




Page 64

Over the last week | have tried to monitor the speed of our car when | or my
wife have been driving and because of the parking it is difficult to see how
anyone driving sensibly could exceed 20 mph - let alone get to 30 mph.

| have no objection to the replacement of the 30 mph signs with 20mph signs
at the sole entrance to the estate but would hate to see more signage within
the estate. | do not believe it would have any effect on actual speeds. Unless
there is rigorous enforcement it would not deter the odd idiot who thinks he
can drive as fast as he likes in an area with mostly families and many
children.

Introducing a 20mph limit in the Reviavl Estate area is neither wanted nor
needed. Having been a resident here for

over 12 years - bascially since the Estate was built - we have had no serious
speeding accidents - that | am aware of

and no serious speeding. The streets are basically too small for any driver to
get chance to get up to the legal 30mph

speed limit comfortably on any of them. We also have a massive speed
hump on the entrance to the estate which slows

most traffic down anyway. In the current economic climate it seems pointless
for the Council or Highways commitee to

waste money on such a project when they cannot even maintain the speed
humps that we have - which is in dire need of

re-marking. Extra signage would not be in keeping with the general aspect of
the estate which is very pleasant and easy on the

eye to walk through - and the cost of maintaining the signage is also another
unecessary expense. The cost of policing the area for

speed breakers would also be needed and that would be more expense out
of the City budget. If you cannot afford to police the

limited zones then there is no point in having them. | have spoken to several
residents in the area - most of whom did not know

this was happening - and every single person | spoke to said it is a bad idea
and we don't need it.

| hope this 'objection’ is fully raised and that the project is cancelled all
together.

With reference to your letter dated 30 September (received 10 October, |
strongly reject to this proposal on a number of grounds, including misuse of
resources when the council is challenged by economic pressures. | am also
disappointed that you are directing residents to support the proposal, when
you offer no evidence that will support using council funds on this proposal.
1. There is no evidence that this residential has a need for these




Page 65

restrictions. To my knowledge, there have been no incidents of any injury or
damage relating to speed.

2.  Your letter suggests that signage will ‘encourage’ drivers to adopt an
appropriate speed, but does not provide any examples where this approach
has been successful

3. There is lack of evidence, or collaborated reports, of speeding or
reckless driving on this estate.

4.  There is no evidence that the introduction of 20mph limit on a
residential road would reduce the risk and severity of injuries as a result of
collisions between vehicles and vulnerable road users

5. As aresidential area, with not through access, drivers are already
restricted to low speeds and this measure is not required.

6. Speed restrictions are more effective and better targeted to busier
roads, where there is a danger to pedestrians and benefits to the
environment.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. Appreciating the less than
positive nature of some of the above comments a 20mph zone is most
appropriate for this estate and by those comments is readily achievable.
Signage can be ‘tailored’ appropriately so as not to be overly intrusive but
legally and practically compliant.

Location: Towthorpe 85" %ile speed: No data




Page 66

Background information

The area has seen an increase in properties over the years, due to
conversion of barns in to properties, giving the area a more residential
feel and increase the number of vehicles along the Iength of road

'| J,-f-' == |
. iy F— ,f--.'.--u" ._-_J-’.IL
| u] ] C
- — g = | y=!
i Iy ot L
- / Drair [ g ] _.-?‘?? | T 'J_I 'l
;""\-\. =-A@ m —— — —‘-\-n..___"_:i_ |'__|' II| :I 1;. _ ~—|.— '||L_-|'Jll_— C II.'- :'|IE'
., j |I Fa --\-.h‘-'h'_rl '|. s I L
T A “ain e
_.-" B R T JIII l'::l ; :f:'-. T___II —7 _|_
/ V™ (] ST T
Fi | = ; _"'_ — - j g I ] "=+ H L |
b I I"‘_—I-_‘r"f. 1 T ||r = | |I |I
f'f LY 1 —T H f | ! A :\_.nhr—j '—_1|-_||r -
] Low Earm I = )_ LT 7w
. N | Lo . | W] ===
N K0 petl
= — \I—llé i |1: | | II|! I'IF
T O . - I';l ".I"."|||'!.":I'-.f-»l FarmJ‘ — I-".' r | Strensall
= e TTm——— (il -
r 1 A%M anor Farrm "|'I _||| , Park ||
A | f
.. . | 1IL| I?}I ||| |I-"--'L|‘-__—::::_5'Ir" [ B
Moat [ Il % . A _I____'I|_='—I TR B
——— ' — e [y
o :I—r-!ck— 1.3 '||r _____==—_:—_..___W'H_ - "‘l | I"‘ﬂ.‘\-_\_..:_\_:wl_ J! ! ! i
T T e - - "-__ - ‘I_ - L5 —
| - /
) e TG Towthorp

T L I| E 1 '
- "‘----éz'_ - ;‘r.f 'l ———
- tan o

el

s - =Grange. Fdl’l‘ll

e

7 - .
.:,l'l _‘_‘—'—n-.'_\_\_ . e o
Draim—4%8n
Creamery

Cmtage - —

-"---.‘::L-u'=;_L T
rs—i—

South
Villa Farm ]

Details of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022:
Responses in favour - 3; against - none.

| received a letter detailed the proposed 30mph limit on Towthorpe road.
As a family with two children under school age, we heartily welcome this
proposal. | would also like to suggest a pedestrian crossing be installed
on Strensall Road by the junction of Towthorpe Road, as traffic on
Strensall road gets very busy and it is extremely difficult to cross the
road from Towthorpe with two small children, so makes it impossible to
get the bus or feel connected with Strensall.

Your lovely project Manager has posted a letter through my door , | also




Page 67

spoke to him . | completley agree with your proposal to reduce the speed
on Towthorpe Road .

Myself , partner and three children live at Thorngarth , Y032 9SP.
Everyday my children have to cross this road to get to school and they
are literally taking thier lives in thier own hands . | have to physically help
them cross . We live right on a blind bend and the cars come up the road
at such a speed that they would not stand a chance . The same applies
when | come out of our drive . Since moving her in March we have had
12 near misses and counting .

| am more than happy to take video footage of what we're experiencing
on a daily basis . No care is considered at all for the residents that live
here . My eldest son bikes on this road everyday and it is no
exaggeration that | panic for him everytime he goes out .

| am honestly praying for the new proposal to come into action . It will be
a much welcomed change .

As the older people on this road move on , families are buying these
properties . Something has to change.

| would like to comment on the Speed Limit Amendment (no14/14) Order
2022 regarding the lowering of the speed limit to 30mph along a section
of Towthorpe Road (C92).

1. | support the proposal on the grounds of road safety and amenity.

2. | request that the review should extend further along the length of
Towthorpe Road as far as the boundary with Haxby. The proposed
amendment leaves this section of Towthorpe Road as derestricted
(60mph) and | request that this is also reduced, to either 30mph or
40mph. My own observations indicate that the 85th percentile speed of
this section of Towthorpe Road is around 40mph. The rationale for this
request is that:

A) the road currently has safety issues for all road users due to the
narrow, unlit and tortuous nature of its’ alignment

B) the road is an important link between Strensall and Haxby for
vulnerable road users (cyclists, pedestrians and equestrians) and the
nature of the road and restricted speed limit make using this road
uncomfortable and hazardous for such users.

C) Towthorpe Road has already experienced increased access activity
due to changes of activities of land uses along its’ length and will do so
into the future especially if the Haxby Station proposal is implemented.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. This short section of
village road has seen increasing use as mentioned above, and by its
nature of road layout and residences/population along it is deserving of a




Page 68

| reduced speed limit which is likely to be observed and complied with.

Location: A19 Shipton Road, | 85" %ile speeds: As below.
Rawcliffe

Background information




Page 69

There is a case when considering the guidelines for either a 30 or
40mph (existing) speed limit along a length of road that is 50% built up
fronting on to and with many accesses on to the main road. By starting
the speed limit where there is a noticeable change in the character of the
road a driver should see and respond to the need for a reduction in their
speed.

"] 40mph Limit South - ‘North % N M v e
| 85% 37 38 WSSl B R UL G
*. 1 Mean 33 33
b GG B, e, R L e S A Tk : % ‘-"-‘"-"f? 2
= “, %, i i
AR, ‘ LR AW |ff_»~l’_f““ T AL S

| 40mph Limit South North 4
\. "] 85% 39 40 3

% — Mean 34 34
Existing 40 ¢ R e P R AN TR B :
W o 50% build up frontage with
e | lots of roads and private
2 | accesses onto the main road.
v 3 - 30
30mph Limit South North e . |Existing30 |
| 85% 36 33 £ . z ,\ ok
A «-Mean 31 29 ' | S

Details of responses from consultation 01 to 21/10/2022: |
Responses in favour — 39; against - 9

We fully support the reduced speed limit, to 30 mph, that you are
proposing. We live opposite York Sport Club and cars often park on the
road from Galtres Grove towards the homestead. They are generally
attending events at the club or visiting the park which involves getting




Page 70

people out of both sides of the car. The reduction in the speed limit will
make it safer for them and for us when we are walking on the paths and
exiting our driveway in the car. There is a slight bend in the road at no.
26 and | often worry that with the speed people drive at they won’t see a
cyclist or stationary traffic around that bend. The reduction in speed will
hopefully reduce this risk drastically.

Whilst | do not disagree with Loweswater Road as a reasonable
commencement of the 30mph limit on the approach to Clifton/York. (The
current 30mph signs just past Clifton Sports Park are very difficult to see
at night time and can be easily missed by drivers unfamiliar with their
location. However, to me it would make sense and very little difference
to the road user for the 30mph Sign to commence prior to reaching
Manor Lane and cease after the Bollards on the approach to the
A19/A1237 round-a-bout. With a 30mph speed limit from this location
there would be no need for other speed limit signs apart from 20mph
Street entrance/30mph exit where appropriate.

My partner and | are residents of Alwyne drive and both are keen
cyclists, for fun and as a way of getting to and through town. 30mph
would drastically improve what | feel like us currently an intimidating
road, especially at night. Cars wizz past cyclists when going at 40, and
often break hard when they realise they can't squeeze past a bike when
approaching a central reservation. If we as a city are serious about
encouraging active transport, reducing pressure on our busy roads and
reducing pollution from cars, anything to improve the experience of
those keen to walk or cycle instead of drive would be ace!! Children also
walk along a stretch of the road to get to bus stops or to the primary
school round the back, so again, a slower speed would be good for
safety and encouraging more walking. To those worried about a slower
speed increasing traffic issues, hopefully any information available would
suggest the pinch points for shipton road are Clifton green lights or
exiting onto the outer ring road, both of which would benefit from
reduced drivers as a result of more walkers and cyclists. | really
appreciate those who've pushed for this amendment to be considered,
and the council for looking into the possibility. It means a lot to know
there are people trying to do good things for our community, health and
planet.




Page 71

This is to confirm our support to reduce the Shipton Road speed limit to
30mph. From a safety, environmental and noise reduction perspective,
the reduction to 30mph is needed. We live at the end of Malton Way
next to Shipton Road and it can be quite terrifying the speed that some
people drive at on Shipton Road. We have seen cars overtaking around
the central reservations and cars frequently exceed the 40mph limit.
When | drive at 40mph on Shipton Road, cars frequently catch up, sit on
my bumper clearly want to go much faster that 40mph. Also, cars
heading past the Sports Club where the limit changes from 30mph to
40mph regularly accelerate hard going way beyond the current 40mph
limit. There have been a number of road accidents at that part of Shipton
Road in recent years. | can see no justification for a 40mph limit on
Shipton Road where safety and environmental considerations must take
priory. The sooner a 30mph limit is introduced, the safer it will be for all
residents. Traffic calming measures may also be needed to change
behaviour.

Both my husband and myself would like to support the proposed
reduction of speed limit on Shipton Road. | walk down this stretch of
road nearly every day and it is clear to see vehicles exceeding the
present 40 mile per hour speed limit. At times it does seem quite
dangerous particularly now with bikes, electric scooters and pedestrians
all using this route. It is an urban area and we fully support this proposal
and hope if passed, there will be sufficient monitoring of speeds.

| am flabbergasted that York Council believe they have had a
consultation with the residents in the area as this proposal has not been
presented to us at all. With all that said, | am in agreement that Shipton
Road needs to be made 30mph from the York Sports Club to
Loweswater Road. However, there needs to be measures in place to
ensure that the speed limit is adhered to. From experience, Green Lane
in Rawcliffe was changed from 40mph to 30mph at the Water Lane end
and this has never been enforced and traffic still regularly breaks the
speed limit.

Additionally, as cyclists, my husband and I find Shipton Road an
horrendous road surface to ride on. The tarmac surface is broken near
the verge, there are potholes and sunken drains/manholes right in our
line of riding. Perhaps another proposal would be to make the road
surface suitable for all vehicles or make the northbound footpath wider
and made into a foot & cycle path?




Page 72

Clifton (Without) Parish Council support the proposed introduction of a
30mph speed limit on Shipton Road (A19) but the parish council would
like to see the reduction of the speed limit extended along this road and
await with interest the outcome of the active travel measures scheme for
the A19.

| wish to support the proposal to reduce the speed limit on Shipton Road
from 40 to 30mph. We live locally, off Fylingdales Avenue and at times
the traffic easily exceeds the present limit of 40mph.

| write to say | am wholly in agreement with a reduction of the speed limit
from 40 to 30. | reside at North Lodge, the noise & the vibrations caused
by the paasing traffic is very noticable, especially from large vehicles &
trailers. | feel sure a reduction in speed would be beneficial to residents
& road users.

| would like to enthusiastically support the proposal for the extension of
the 30 limit from the Sports club to beyond loweswater road. This will
greatly improve safety for pedestrians and cyclists, improve air quality
and reduce noise.

I'm writing in full support of the proposed 30mph speed limit change.
Thank you. However, it's frustrating that this is not proposed right up to
the A1079 roundabout. It makes sense to lower the speed limit the full
length of Shipton Road. Roads are faster and busier and | welcome this
change. Pulling out of Alwyne Drive onto Shipton Road is just horrible
due to the speed of vehicles coming around the corner. Anything to slow
this down must be welcomed and can't come soon enough.

I am writing on behalf of residents in Galtres Grove, Clifton. We fully
support the move to reduce the speed limit to 30 mph on the A19 to the
proposed new point near Loweswater Road. However we would have
much preferred this extension to go right up to the ring road and hope
that other consultations will lead to this happening.




Page 73

This scheme has my support. Would prefer the start of the speed limit to
be at the junction with the park and ride and include enforcement of the
bus only lane.

As regards to the change from 40mph to 30mph on A19 Shipton Road,
good plan which should have been done years ago. Why not take it back
to the lights turning into the P&R. When lights turn to green most traffic
will not reach 40mph also avoiding to many signs. Is there a traffic
management C of P stopping this?

| think the 30 mph limit should continue from the sports club to the
roundabout A10 with A1237.

Whilst any speed limit reduction is a good thing, | feel that by not having
the 30 limit from the ring road roundabout, and allowing drivers to speed
up to 40+, they will be less inclined to slow down again after that short
distance, partly because it will catch people out ( having had the 40 in
place for such a long time) and partly because people generally don't
seem to pay much attention to speed limits anyway! having lived in
Alwyne Grove for 35 years | can testify to this. Is there a reason for not
having all of Shipton Road from the roundabout limited to 307?

Also there is a considerable amount of pedestrian and cycle traffic
crossing the the road by the roundabout to go over the river bridge
competing with two lanes of traffic and the busy junction with Manor
Lane and all of this in a 40 mph zone.

In conclusion | think that having the 30mph limit all the way from the
ringroad makes more sense as traffic has already slowed down for the
roundabout, so Is more likely to keep to 30.

We approve the Council's proposal to introduce a 30mph speed limit on
the Shipton Road between York Sports Club and Loweswater Road in
place of the present 40mph limit.

I would like to give my support to reducing the speed limit on Shipton
road to 30mph. | have lived at North Lodge on Shipton road for 18
months and have in that time witnessed speeds by drivers in cars,
lorries, motorbikes many doing well over the 40mph speed limit. | walk




Page 74

with my husband nearly every day to Rawcliffe bus depot, due to it now
being the only access point to Rawcliffe meadow. | have seen a van
crashed into a bus, and also very close calls for pedestrians and cyclists.
During the evening and during the night some speeds of lorries make
the apartments shake. So in agreement that its about time that this was
changed before there is a very serious incident. The path along the left
hand side for pedestrians heading towards Rawcliffe bus lane is too
narrow, then becomes non existent. Having to cross is a huge risk for all.
Having stood in the middle of the road at the middle beacon, it's unsafe
to do, as traffic is too heavy, fast and scary. | think genuine speed
cameras need to be installed, as this route is used by many large lorries,
buses, tractors and HGV lorries. | also think a pedestrian crossing is
needed, which will also reduce the speed of traffic | see young children
daily walking this route to school, with no safe place to cross. | hope |
have made my point towards this problem.

| am a resident at number 90 Shipton Road and wish to express my
strong support to reduce the speed limit from 40mph to 30mph.

If these proposals are supported and implemented, then | request that
there should be consideration to enforcing them with appropriate
speed/camera checks along with electronic speed signs warning drivers
that they are exceeding the speed limit. The evenings and night-time
seem to be worse for speeding due to there being less traffic on the
road. | am often woken by my house shaking as a direct consequence of
HGV'’s travelling at speed along Shipton Road, in particular supermarket
deliveries to the town centre. | therefore ask that in addition to reducing
the speed limit, that consideration is also taken to enforcement.

| support in principal the proposal to reduce the speed limit for vehicles
travelling along Shipton Road between Galtres Road and Loweswater
Road however have a few concerns.

1. Why not introduce this limit along a more extended length notably
between Rawcliffe park and ride junction and Galtres Grove. It would
seem a rather arbitrary length of road along which to introduce a revised
speed limit .

2. Why not sort out the proposed bike lanes and consult on this at the
same time as the speed limit proposal and then, when the scheme is
agreed, implement as an integrated project for bikes, traffic and
pedestrians which would arguably be a financial saving to in terms of
costs n of signage and road markings installation etc.

3. In view of this slightly random proposal which does not seem to have




Page 75

much rhyme or reason as a stand alone project, | have concerns that
there is another agenda in separately introducing tis proposal as an
Isolated project as once the speed limit is reduced, it would be an
opportunity to allow new access points for vehicles and potentially allow
development on the riverside side of Shipton Road on the open land /

| fully support the principal of the proposed speed reduction (to 30mph )
on Shipton Road. | very much doubt however that the measures will be
self-enforcing, therefore effective, unless there are complimentary
measures to " calm " this wide and open stretch of road such as cycle
lanes, more frequent and controlled pedestrian crossings with central
islands , width reductions , chicane type road layout , tighter lane
markings etc etc . The speed reduction therefore needs to be
implemented with complimentary measures if it is to have the desired
effect.

We are emailing you in support of the proposal to reduce the speed limit
to 30mph. It will make crossing over the road to walk our dogs or go to
the Sports Club much safer. Hopefully it will also have an environmental
benefit creating less vehicle emissions and noise.

| support the proposal to restrict the speed limit to 30 mph on the above
road. But when will we get the new cycling route.

| write to register my support for the proposal to reduce Shipton Road to
a 30 mph limit. In my opinion, this is long overdue for safety and
environmental reasons. | regularly walk up and down Shipton Road and |
am frequently passed by cars, vans and lorries driving at well over 40
mph. It is quite frightening at times, particularly in the evenings when the
road is empty. | live on a road off Shipton Road and feel very strongly
that this should be a 30 mph limit. My main concern is that those who
currently disregard the 40 limit may need a stronger deterrent than new
signage to alter their behaviour behind the wheel!

| look forward to hearing that new lower speed limits will be introduced,
and enforced in the near future.

Kindly register our support to reduce the speed limit to 30 mph. The




Page 76

three residents at this address fully support this proposal.

In the six years that we have lived here it has become increasingly
difficult (at times) to exit Fylingdales onto Shipton Road as many drivers
see the 40 mph limit as a licence to drive at 45 or 50 mph.

The existing pedestrian refuges need to be retained but the addition of
dedicated cycle lanes would a great advantage as there is a much-
increased risk to them at the refuge pinch points.

| am mailing to inform you that | 100% agree with the reduction of the
speed limit to 30mph.

This is long overdue. | live at 56 Shipton Road, York and the speed of
traffic is disgraceful showing no regard for residents and their safety.
The speeding includes large vehicles such as trucks and lorries and
even on occasion , buses.

| am fully in support of the proposal to reduce the speed limit to 30mph
along the Rawcliffe section of the A19. This is a dangerous road to walk
alongside and to cycle on and this change will help to improve this.

| would ask why it is considered necessary to maintain the existing
40mph section from 165 Shipton Road to the ring road. This will
encourage cars in both directions to accelerate to 40mph (and beyond)
for a very short distance, resulting in an increase in pollution and noise.
There are several junctions and crossings on this section and | can see
no reason why it should not also be 30mph.

| Support the proposed speed limit. Wether anyone takes notice if it is a
different matter. Many vehicles totallt ignore it.50 mph is quite noticeable
with oss 60 mph ofton seen/heard. i cannot recall seeing any speed
traps on Shipton Rd. It would be very interesting to see how manu
motorists have been fined even in the last year.

| am writing to support the proposed reduction in the speed limit on part
of Shipton Road from 40 to 30mph.

| also request that it is extended to the ring road roundabout as the short
remaining stretch at 40mph will lead to confusion.

| would also like to see speeds reduced on parallel routes (Eastholm
Drive and Rawcliffe Lane) to 20mph and this alternative route also




Page 77

blocked as a through route.

After having received notification about consultation on speed reduction
40 to 30, I'd like to suggest in relation to the planned length road
alterations. My suggestion is phasing the road speed reduction rather
abruptly 40 to 30 zone, instead reduce the speed from Rawcliffe Park
traffic light junction on A19 from 40mph to 35mph At that point. Remain
at 35mph till junction of Northholme drive/A19 & Road into Clifton Park
hospital at this point reduce road speed to 30mph proposed, reason |
believe this be better as at present vehicles approaching Clifton Park at
40mph brake sharply upon seeing 30mph sign increase fuel usage as
opposed to a gradual slow down which use less fuel better for the
environment.

Rawcliffe Parish Council has asked me to get in touch with regards to
the proposed amendments to the speed limits along Shipton Road.
The Parish Council has no objections to the amendments.

Our main concern is cycling safely; when the road markings were
redone, large chevroned areas were put in the middle of the road,
encouraging cars over to the left, leaving no space for cyclists when the
traffic is queuing at peak times. The speed limit seems fine at 40, given
that the road is pretty wide, and there aren’t houses on both sides, unlike
an area such as Green Lane, where 30 feels more appropriate, however
we appreciate that pedestrians may feel more comfortable with traffic at
30.




Page 78

kear S Yl aw~

{l,\j(, e IM,W? ,(l'p‘ffﬁge {Cobw{:.m b,k—t!ftw
bk o~ SLSpla~ Ll bre G SOmph hats ba
911?“1 @ﬂ‘njn, L\Mwmlj m’ate«lsti@uwa

T oed o Shiplo lA A Dbyean
wWhiecle va’nh.-‘cm P m&ﬁmm&m .
§ld Claftom &brf-uaiﬁ-u.&ﬂwmw

IfflﬂM-"-: sW u; ve L, c,@,‘y"e_ 5zl

bowﬂ shed 5N
Pbd&"“-" JW"“"'{"' wr AT~ FM.
ﬂ,[oo Wwitnessed aceiden3 MIide suws

W whidh  have vavslvd te Pého(do;wj
Ue vad. On anddler oLtcegun fle huy
obelber weol s hao been Wil by o caf
Drvens affen bruwel wn ereess of Gre 4Oumph
(_M{; Lt also nftiec thak ﬂdfcmj l'-\.oMJ/

Guf HeV drwed  wse g Vrond
g:r_,(’ oitess speeds .

.ﬁfwﬂh vedk o o sde Mads
E:u 9{211:40}»0‘./74/06

We,a/reSkroLm MﬂLR

Whilst considering the speed limit change from 40 to 30 mph on Shipton
Road, | urge you to also make Northolme Drive and Southolme Drive
into 20 mph zones. Both roads are becoming a rat run, and the
increased on street parking is developing a dangerous environment for
all road users and pedestrians.




Page 79

Living at 66 Shipton Rd, we are only too aware of the dangers of the 40
mph limit....every time we try to enter/exit our properties. And the
number of near accidents and accidents reported by our neighbours
experiencing the same dangers confirms this. We are very supportive of
the proposed introduction of the 30 m.p.h. limit.

As a resident of Shipton Road (108), I'd like to say | fully support the
proposal to reduce the speed limit on Shipton Road to 30 mph.

It is often difficult to gain access to Shipton Road from our driveway due
to the speed of vehicles and the same can be said when turning left into
my driveway from Shipton Rd whilst heading towards town.

The speed of cars travelling behind me is often too fast for them to slow
down sufficiently without them using an overtaking manoeuvre.

Whilst there is currently a 40mph limit in place, | suspect this is often
exceeded and there appears to be very little to discourage this
behaviour.

| welcome the proposed reduction in speed along Shipton Road.
Currently the road is very dangerous to cross, and many of the traffic
islands are not in helpful places being away from the junctions, which
means that in bad weather people don’t go out of their way to use them.
| believe that it would be better to start the 30 mph zone at the
roundabout so that drivers haven’t built up speed and then are less likely
to comply with the limit.

| am totally in support of the proposed speed limit change from 40mph to
30mph on Shipton Road, York. In my view this will make crossing that
road much safer for the residents who frequently cross to walk to the
river and beyond. As a family of 2 adults and two children we cross this
road to access the excellent play park, and nature reserve, as do many
other families from the area North East of the Nature reserve.

Many cyclists also use Shipton Road as a commute and being overtaken
by a car at 30mph is much more comfortable for the cyclist than 40mph.

Thank you for your letter about the proposal to reduce the speed limit on
Shipton Road. This is very welcome and an excellent change! There is
no need to drive at 40mins as there are generally congestion at either
end anyway. | would also support the introduction of speed cameras to




Page 80

enforce the limit.

Responses against - 9

For the record, | live in Fylingdale Avenue (No 14) and drive along
Shipton Rd daily. | am also a keen cyclist and use this road regularly
with my bike. By profession, | am a safety engineer and conduct risk
assessments on a frequent basis. | do not support a reduction in the
speed limit and believe the current speed limit is appropriate. | cannot
see any credible justification for a change, as the road is wide and | have
never felt threatened whilst cycling along the road. | also believe the
accident rate on the road is low and | cannot recall seeing any significant
safety issue in the 10 plus years | have lived in this area. | therefore
request that you do not support a lowering of the speed limit.

| feel that proposed speed limit change on the A19, Shipton Road is not
necessary and judging by the compliance with the current speed limit
would not be adhered to and difficult to enforce. There have been no
incidents which make this change necessary.

| do not think the speed limit should change from 40mph to 30mph. |
think that the road is currently a safe road and don't believe that
changing to 30mph would have improve safety. Rather that it would
ensure cars are kept on the road longer. 1 also think it would be costly to
change and advertise the fact that the speed limit is changing. Please
divert this expenditure to more immediate needs.

That being said, | do feel that improvements need to be made at the
Rawcliffe Park and Ride section of Shipton Road. Cars that have no
intention of using the Park and Ride but use this diversion to jump ahead
of the traffic queuing on Shipton Road to access Clifton bridge are
causing hostile and uncareful driving. | would like a system where cars
who have not stayed for more than 5 minutes (such as using the car
park for P&R, exercise, dog walking or recycling) are notified on exit (if
under two minutes) that they have incorrectly used the P&R. Perhaps a
system of logging number plates at entrance point and exit and notifying
drivers on exit of misuse". Council car parks collect number plates and
perhaps this or a similar system could help remind drivers to use the
Park and Ride appropriately. | don't feel it would be appropriate to store
number plates unless fines were being issued.




Page 81

As a resident of the area, | am against the proposed reduction. | have
lived in the area for over 15 years. What collisions | have seen or
witnessed on this stretch of road have not been due to speed, but to
poor standards of driving, these being vehicles pulling out of junctions.
Travel around York is difficult and slow enough as it is with any further
restrictions. To support the argument for reducing the limit, I'd be grateful
if you could provide the details of the number of road traffic collisions on
this stretch of road over the past 10 years, and please provide details of
whether speed was the primary factor in these collisions. Any data on
recorded near misses would also be appreciated as with the greatest of
respect to the local counsellors, word of mouth and speaking to a select
few locals doesn't constitute an adequate reason for such a change.

My question would be -unless there have been accidents on what would
appear to be a section of road that will comfortably sustain a 40mph
speed limit- why wouldn't Southolme Drive be subject to further speed
restrictions/measures. Southolme has people regularly travelling in
excess of 30mph (already a speed unsafe for this street).

| am writing to you to reject the proposal of the reduced speed limit for
the following reasons:

1. You are penalising those who actually respect the speed limit. If
people abide by the 40mph limit then pulling out onto the road isn't an
issue. Its those who excessively speed near 50-60pmh that cause
people to complain.

2. Just because you lower the speed limit to 30mph does not mean
those who already ignore the speed limit will suddenly start to obey it.

3. I live just off Shipton road and have to pull out onto it multiple times a
day. It has never been an issue unless the traffic is backed up half way
down due to the ring road roundabout. Which then its because of the
drivers being stupid, not the 40mph limit.

4. Those who walk near the road should respect it (more than can be
said for the counciler Darryl Smalley posing imminently on the curbside
on the York Press website). It doesnt matter if you get hit at 30mph or
40mph. Rather than trying to cover the issue up with a speed reduction,
try get to the forefront of the issue which is the people themselves




Page 82

requiring educating.

5. Cars are getting even smarter, have automatic detection of
pedestrians for braking, much shorter braking distances than when the
speed limits were first introduced.

6. Cars are now designed to protect people in the event of an accident,
inside and outside. More so than their equivalent counterparts 20 years
ago.

From all the points above, it is clear that the issue lies with the
individuals either walking down the road or people driving. Reducing that
speed limit will likely cause people to be less aware of their surroundings
due to 'switching off' as they believe its now a safe area being a 30mph
zone. Target those who dont obey the speed limit. And educate the
pedestrians who dont respect that roads are dangerous. | am writing to
advise that | object to the planned speed reduction.

The proposed reduction would cause exiting junctions onto Shipton
Road harder than it is now with traffic bunching together rather than
keep it flowing.

The same can be said of the roundabout traffic at Rawcliffe Bar; the
traffic already causes congestion which would be compounded by the
speed reduction prior to this.

| understand from our local councillors Derek, Sam and Darryl's flier that
there are plans to change the speed limit on Shipton Road.

| would be against that proposal feeling that the road is sufficiently wide
enough to continue to accommodate safely the present 40mph
restriction. Presumably 40mph is a more fuel and carbon efficient speed
for a car to travel at in terms of the environment. | am largely a cyclist
myself and use the smaller roads to commute from 8 Eva Avenue
YO305TY our property to York Hospital for work as a pharmacist on the
wards. However when do use the main road to travel would prefer to
have the option of 40mph when safe to do so please.

| disagree with the proposed change. If the aim is to make it safer for
cyclists but there are already near parallel off road routes on




Page 83

SUSTRANS. If the aim is to make it safer for pedestrians there is
adequate room for additional traffic islands. The road is wide enough for
it to work for all road users at the current speed. Reduced vehicle
lighting requirements on 30 mph sections could actually make it more
dangerous for both groups. This would be a waste of cash in my view,
there is no effective policing of speeds and many vehicles includes
Goods vehicles and PSVs already break the existing 30 and 40 limits
routinely.

Officer Comments: Implement as advertised. My initial thoughts when
considering this proposal were that a reduction in the limit would not be
complied with by the majority of road users. However, since then | have
become aware of other users of this area many of whom are vulnerable.
Implementing this proposal now will compliment future proposed travel
plans and may, in the near future, also be complimented by a proposed
new signalised crossing at Fylingdale Avenue helping to reinforce the
proposed limit.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 85

Annex D

Notice of Proposals

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
NOTICE OF PROPOSALS
THE YORK SPEED LIMIT (AMENDMENT) (No 14/14)
ORDER 2022

Notice is hereby given that City of York Council, in exercise of powers under Sections 82,
83, 84 and Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act, 1984 ("the Act") and of all other
enabling powers and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with
Schedule 9 of the Act, proposes to make an Order which will have the effect, of:

1.

Introducing a 20 miles per hour (mph) speed limit in The Hollies, Stockton on the
Forest, thereby revoking the existing statutory 30 mph speed limit from within
that length.

Introducing a 20 miles per hour speed limit in Academy Drive, Bursary Court,
Chancellor Grove, College Court, Principal Rise and Teachers Close York,
thereby revoking the existing statutory 30 mph speed limit from within those
lengths of roads.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in Northfield Lane, Upper Poppleton,
between point a 182 metres south from the southern kerbline of the York-
Harrogate (A59) road (terminal point of existing 40mph speed limit) and its
junction with York Outer Ring Road (Al1237), thereby revoking the existing
statutory national speed limit from within that length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in North Lane, Huntington, between
its junction with the Leeds-Scarborough Trunk Road (A64(T)) and the projected
western property boundary line of Tall Timbers, thereby revoking the existing
statutory national speed limit from within that length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in Shipton Road (A19), Clifton
Without/Rawcliffe between a point 55 metres south from the projected centreline
of Galtres Grove (terminal point of exiting 40mph speed limit) and a point 20
metres north west from the projected property boundary line of No. 165 Shipton
Road, thereby revoking the existing 40mph speed limit from within that length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in Wheldrake Lane (C302), Elvington
between points 105 metres (terminal point of existing 30mph speed limit), and
205 metres south from the projected southern kerbline of Elvington Lane
(B1228), thereby revoking the existing statutory national speed limit from within
that length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in Askham Bryan Lane, Askham
Bryan between a point 90 metres (terminal point of existing 30mph speed limit)
and 190 metres north east from the projected centreline of Church Close,
thereby revoking the existing statutory national speed limit from within that
length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in Askham Fields Lane (C286),
Askham Bryan between a point 220 metres (terminal point of existing 30mph
speed limit) and 320 metres south from the projected southern kerbline of Main



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 86

Street, thereby revoking the existing statutory national speed limit from within
that length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in York Road (B1222), Naburn
between a point 66 metres north from the north eastern property boundary line
of Newstead, Front Street (terminal point of existing 30mph speed limit) and a
point 470 metres north from the projected centreline of Howden Lane, thereby
revoking the existing statutory national speed limit from within that length.

Introducing a 30 miles per hour speed limit in Towthorpe Road (C92), Towthorpe
from the projected north western kerbline of Strensall Road (C90) and a point
560 metres north west from the said line, thereby revoking the existing
40mph/statutory national speed limit from within that length.

Introducing a 40 miles per hour speed limit in York-Hull Road (A1079),
Dunnington, between points 80 metres (terminal point of existing 40mph speed
limit) and 180 metres west from the projected centreline of Thornbeck,
Dunnington, thereby revoking the existing statutory national speed limit from
within that length.

Introducing a 40 miles per hour speed limit in Sim Balk Lane, Bishopthorpe/York
between points 216 metres south east from the southern kerbline of Tadcaster
Road (terminal point of existing 30mph speed limit) and a point 198 metres north
west from the projected centreline of Church Lane (terminal point of existing
30mph speed limit), thereby revoking the existing statutory national speed limit
from within that length.

Introducing a 40 miles per hour speed limit in Askham Fields Lane, Askham
Bryan between the roundabout controlled junction with A64/A1237 and a point
320 metres south from the projected southern kerbline of Main Street, thereby
revoking the existing statutory national speed limit from within that length.

A copy of the draft Order, Statement of Reasons for making it and relevant maps can
be inspected at the Reception, West Offices, Station Rise, York, during normal
business hours. Objections or other representations specifying reasons for the
objection or representation should be sent to me in writing to arrive no later than 21t
October 2022.

Dated the 30™ day of September 2022 Director of Economy and Place

West Offices, Station Rise,
York, YO1 6GA
Email: highway.regulation@york.gov.uk



Page 87 Agenda Item 6

COUNCIL

Executive Member Decision Session 17 January 2023

Report of the Corporate Director of Place
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Transport

Directorate of Place Transport Capital Programme —2022/23 Monitor
2 Report

Summary

1. The purpose of this report is to set out progress to date on schemes
in the 2022/23 Transport Capital Programme, and propose
adjustments to scheme allocations to align with the latest cost
estimates and delivery projections.

Recommendations

2. The Executive Member is asked to:

1) Approve the amendments to the 2022/23 Directorate of Place
Transport Capital Programme, and to delegate authority to the
Corporate Director of Place, in consultation with the Director of
Governance (or his delegated officers), to take whatever action
IS necessary to negotiate, agree and formalise such
amendments within any existing arrangements the Council has
with external funders.

Reason: To implement the council’s transport strategy identified
in York’s third Local Transport Plan and the Council Priorities,
and deliver schemes identified in the council’s Transport
Programme, including the Active Travel Programme.

Background

3. Following approval at Budget Council meeting on 17 February
2022, the Transport Capital Budget for 2022/23 was confirmed at
£22,926k. The budget was then amended to £40,043k in July 2022
when the Executive Member was presented with the Consolidated



Page 88

Transport Capital Programme, which included all schemes and
funding carried forward from 2021/22, and additional grant funding
received from the Active Travel Fund programme and the Zero
Emission Bus Regional Area (ZEBRA) programme. Further
amendments to the programme were made at the Monitor 1 budget
report meeting in October 2022.

Following these amendments, the current budget for the 2022/23
Transport Capital Programme is £31,736k. This includes funding
from the Local Transport Plan (LTP) grant, developer funding,
council resources, and grants for individual schemes. The grant
funding includes significant funding from various external sources,
including the Active Travel Fund grant, the West Yorkshire
Transport Fund, the Transforming Cities Fund, funding for new
electric buses from the Zero Emission Bus Regional Area grant,
and funding from the Department for Transport for the Outer Ring
Road Dualling scheme.

The following report sets out progress on schemes and advises the
Executive Member of amendments that need to be made to
scheme budgets. Full details of the current and proposed budgets
are shown in Annex 1 to this report, with full details of the
programme shown in Annex 2.

It should be noted that costs for some schemes have increased
compared to the initial cost estimates. This is due to the high level
of inflation and other issues affecting the economy at present,
meaning the cost of construction materials and construction works
has increased since the initial cost estimates were prepared.

2022/23 Major Schemes

7.

The allocations within the Major Schemes block will deliver a
significant programme of improvements to the city’s infrastructure.
Funding for these schemes has been secured from several external
funding sources, with contributions from the council’s capital
budgets agreed to support these projects.

A planning application for dualling the York Outer Ring Road
(A1237) is proceeding through the determination period, and the
target date for a decision is February 2023. In parallel, the project
team are working on the other key elements in the scheme such as
acquiring land (where possible), preparation of a Compulsory



10.

11.

12.

Page 89

Purchase Order, Side Roads Order, and accompanying Statement
of Reasons, developing the business case, and completing the
detailed design for the scheme. Commencement of works on site is
programmed for autumn 2023, but there are a number of
milestones to achieve before funding is released for the
construction of the scheme. It is proposed to reduce the 2022/23
allocation for the scheme to £4,300k and transfer the remaining
funding to 2023/24, to reflect the expected costs in 2022/23.

Work is progressing on the York Station Gateway scheme. The
utility diversion works started on site in January 2022, and the
highways works are expected to begin in spring 2023, with
completion currently programmed for autumn 2025.

The contract for the installation of the Hostile Vehicle Mitigation
measures in the city centre has now been awarded, and the main
works are programmed to start in spring 2023, with completion
anticipated in summer 2023 (depending on the timescales for utility
diversion works). The works will take place at eight junctions
around the main Footstreets area and existing static bollards will be
replaced at three further locations, as set out in the report to the
Executive meeting of 18 August 2022. Due to the revised timescale,
it is proposed to reduce the 2022/23 allocation to £920k and
transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24, when the majority of the
work will be taking place.

Work is continuing to progress the design work and develop a
revised business case for the new rail station at Haxby following the
approval of a preferred site for the station by Executive in
December 2021. Additionally, further approvals were given at
Executive in October 2022 to progress the scheme to the next
stages and submit a planning application when practicable (likely
spring 2023). It is proposed to reduce the allocation for this scheme
to £635k and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24, to reflect
the revised timescales for the scheme.

An outline scheme for the proposed Tadcaster Road Transport
Improvements was agreed by the Executive Member in January
2022. Following the completion of feasibility and design work, work
on the proposed improvements between Moor Lane Roundabout
and Blossom Street will begin in early 2023, which are being
progressed with the Tadcaster Road maintenance scheme. It is
proposed to transfer £400k from the Highways Maintenance budget



13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 90

for Tadcaster Road to this scheme as a contribution to the costs of
the proposed improvements.

The Castle Gateway Transport Improvements scheme aims to
improve transport infrastructure in the area of the Castle Gateway
development scheme, and work has continued, and will continue,
through 2022/23 to develop potential transport measures for the
area. However, the timescales for any proposed schemes are
dependent on the wider development proposals, and are not known
at present.

Work has continued on the Electric Vehicle Fleet Infrastructure,
Hyper Hubs, and Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure schemes.
The installation of charging infrastructure for electric vehicles at the
council’'s Hazel Court depot is ongoing. The Monks Cross and
Poppleton Bar Hyper Hubs are now open, and a planning
application has been submitted for the proposed Hyper Hub at
Union Terrace car park. Work is also progressing on the installation
of new electric vehicle charging points across the city. A review of
costs has been carried out, and it is proposed to transfer £187k
from the Electric Vehicle Charging budget to the Hyper Hubs
budget as a contribution to the Union Terrace Hyper Hub scheme.

Following the completion of the new strategic traffic model and the
real-time traffic model in 2021/22, work on the Smarter Travel
Evolution Programme (STEP) is ongoing, with the Green Light
Optimised Speed Advisory (GLOSA) and data platform projects
progressing as planned. It is proposed to reduce the 2022/23
allocation for the scheme to £270k, and transfer the remaining grant
funding to 2023/24 to fund the costs of the data platform in future
years.

Work is continuing on the detailed design for the Scarborough
Bridge St Mary’s Ramp cycle route scheme, but timescales for
construction of the scheme have not been confirmed as some utility
diversion work is needed before the scheme can be constructed. It
IS proposed to reduce the allocation for the Scarborough Bridge
Cycle Routes scheme to £160k for the completion costs of the
Bootham Crossing scheme and the access improvements at the
riverside path floodgate, and transfer the remaining funding to
2023/24 to allow the St Mary’s Ramp scheme to be progressed.



17.

18.

19.

Page 91

As set out in the Monitor 1 report to the October Decision Session,
the final payments to bus operators to fund work to improve
emissions from their bus fleets have now been made, which will
ensure that all buses operating in York meet the requirements of
the city centre Clean Air Zone.

As previously reported, the council was awarded grant funding from
the government’s Zero Emission Bus Regional Area (ZEBRA) fund
to support the purchase of 44 fully electric buses, and has been
working with bus operators to progress this scheme. The funding
allocation in 2022/23 will be used for the purchase of buses and
charging infrastructure upgrades at the First York depot, with the
remaining funding to be spent in 2023/24.

Full details of the revised budgets for the Major Schemes
programme are shown in Annexes 1 and 2 to this report.

2022/23 Transport Schemes

20.

21.

22.

23.

A review of the current programme of transport schemes has
identified schemes where the allocations need to be amended to
reflect scheme progress and updated cost estimates. As previously
mentioned, costs for some schemes have increased from the initial
estimates due to the impact of inflation on construction costs.

As previously reported, the council made a successful bid to the
government for funding for York's Bus Service Improvement Plan
(BSIP), and has been awarded funding for a three-year programme
of improvements to bus services and bus infrastructure. A total of
£2,375k capital BSIP grant has been added to the 2022/23 capital
programme for the proposed bus priority schemes, Park & Ride
interchanges, bus stop upgrades, and real-time screen upgrades,
which will be implemented in 2023/24.

Some amendments have been made to the other schemes in the
Public Transport block, as the majority of the Bus Stop
Improvements and real-time screen upgrades will now be funded
though the BSIP programme.

Pursuant to the previous budget report, the funding for the Dial &
Ride buses was transferred to the 2023/24 budget due to the
expected timescales for the purchase of the new buses. However,
the supplier is now able to provide the buses earlier than originally



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Page 92

expected, so it is proposed to return the funding to the 2022/23
budget. There has been an increase to the cost of the buses since
the original estimates were provided, so the original budget has
been increased by £20k to fund these additional costs.

Work on the Traffic Signals Asset Renewal (TSAR) programme has
been progressing through 2022/23, with three schemes completed
and a further scheme at Bishopgate Street to be implemented in
March 2023. However, as it will not be possible to implement the
Pavement/ Piccadilly/ Coppergate scheme in 2022/23, it is
proposed to reduce the allocation for the TSAR programme to
£1,266k and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24.

It is proposed to reduce the funding allocation for the Automatic
Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) Bus Lane Enforcement scheme
to £65k and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24, as the new
cameras will now be installed in summer 2023.

Work is progressing on the review and audit of cycle barriers across
the city, and some minor works have already been carried out at
Hob Moor, Jubilee Terrace, and Ashton Lane. However, as the
majority of the works to address issues with cycle barriers will be
carried out in 2023/24, it is proposed to reduce the allocation in
2022/23 to £120k and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24.

The installation of new dropped kerbs in Haxby has been
completed, but as the cost of the scheme was higher than originally
estimated, it is proposed to increase the allocation to £50k for this
scheme. The installation of dropped kerbs on Fossgate was
completed in November, and further work to install dropped kerbs in
the Footstreets area is planned for early 2023. The installation of
dropped kerbs on Goodramgate will now be carried out in 2023/24,
and it is proposed to transfer £45k to 2023/24 to fund this work.

Funding was allocated in the 2022/23 programme for access
improvements in the city centre, including additional dropped kerbs,
and a review of access issues is ongoing. It is proposed to reduce
the allocation for this work to £50k, and transfer the remaining
funding to 2023/24 to allow improvements identified in the review to
be implemented.

It is proposed to reduce the allocation for the Pedestrian Crossing
Review scheme to £60k, and transfer the remaining funding to



30.

31.

32.

33.

Page 93

2023/24, due to the lower cost of proposed works in 2022/23. The
Main Street Copmanthorpe scheme was completed in summer
2022, and following the assessment of new sites earlier in the year,
further feasibility and design work will be carried out in 2022/23 to
develop schemes for implementation in future years.

Work has continued on the review of structures on the Public Rights
of Way (PROW) network, and a scheme to replace an existing
bridge over the River Foss at Skelton with an improved, more
accessible bridge is being progressed for construction in spring
2023. It is proposed to reduce the allocation for this scheme to £40k
and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24, as the majority of
the construction works will not be done in 2022/23.

The proposed improvements to the approaches to Millennium
Bridge will raise the level of the existing path to allow pedestrians
and cyclists to access the bridge when river levels are high, which
will ensure that this key section of cycle route is still accessible
during flood events. Feasibility and design work has been carried
out, but as it is not possible to construct the scheme in the winter
period, it is proposed to reduce the allocation for the scheme to
£30k and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24 to allow the
scheme to be implemented in May 2023. This scheme is funded
through funding allocated for improvements to the section of the
National Cycle Network Route 65 (NCN 65) that runs through York,
and a programme of improvements to other sections of NCN 65 in
York is also being developed for implementation in future years.

A review of the Safety Schemes programme has been carried out,
and some amendments have been made to the scheme budgets to
reflect the current cost estimates and timescales.

Work has been carried out to develop the proposed new Flood Sign
Renewal scheme, but as the new signs will not be installed by the
end of 2022/23, it is proposed to reduce the allocation to £20k for
design costs and transfer the remaining funding to 2023/24.

Active Travel Programme

34.

The council’s Active Travel Programme includes the funding
allocated for Cycling Schemes in the Summer 2019 budget, and the
grant funding awarded from the government’s Active Travel Fund
(ATF) for schemes to encourage the use of active travel modes



35.

36.

37.

Page 94

(walking and cycling) through the provision of new/ improved
infrastructure across the city.

As previously reported, initial feasibility and design work has been
carried out to develop the schemes in the Active Travel Programme
for implementation, but a review of the programme was required
due to the expected scheme costs being higher than the available
budget. A revised programme was presented to the meeting of the
Executive on 22 November 2022, and the following schemes
(Phase 1 schemes) were approved by Executive as the first phase
of the programme:

University Road Pedestrian Improvements (completed)
Navigation Road Low Traffic Area (completed)

Hospital Fields Road Cycle Scheme

Skeldergate Cycle Improvements

Manor Lane / Shipton Road Improvements

City Centre North-South Cycle Route

City Centre Bridges Signage Improvements

City Centre Accessibility: St George’s Field Crossing

City Centre Cycle Parking Improvements

People Streets Ostman Road (to detailed design only)
People Streets Clifton Green Primary (to detailed design only)
People Streets Badger Hill Primary (to detailed design only)
University East West Campus Link (to detailed design only)

It is also proposed to progress the following two schemes by other
avenues in consultation with ward councillors:

e Nunnery Lane / Victor Street (Puffin to Toucan): Will be
considered with solutions for Victoria Bar and a wider review
of Low Traffic Neighbourhood arrangements in Bishophill.

¢ Nunthorpe Road / Southlands Road: To be reviewed under
the Access Barrier Review scheme.

The remaining schemes in the Active Travel Programme (Phase 2
schemes) will be paused pending further funding becoming
available in future years:

e A1237 Bridge Cycle Route

e Orbital Cycle Route — Lawrence Street / James Street /
Regent Street

e Acomb Road Active Travel Scheme



38.

39.

40.

Page 95

Fishergate Gyratory Pedestrian and Cycle Scheme
Fulford Road / Frederick House Active Travel Scheme
Rougier Street / Tanners Moat Gap

Chocolate Works Riverside Path

Tang Hall Lane / Foss Islands Path Access

The scheme allocations have been adjusted to reflect the revised
programme, and as a number of the Phase 1 schemes will not be
constructed in 2022/23, the 2022/23 Active Travel Programme
allocation has been reduced to £983k, with the remaining funding
transferred to 2023/24. Details of the revised Active Travel
Programme are shown in Annex 2 to this report.

No other changes are proposed to the schemes in the transport
capital programme at this stage of the year. A number of schemes
have already been completed or are currently on site, and other
schemes are being prepared for implementation in early 2023, with
feasibility and design work being progressed to develop schemes
for implementation in 2023/24.

Full details of the revised budgets are shown in Annexes 1 and 2 to
this report.

Consultation

41.

42.

The capital programme is decided through a formal process using a
Capital Resources Allocation Model (CRAM). CRAM is a tool used
for allocating the council’s capital resources to schemes that meet
corporate priorities.

Funding for the capital programme was agreed by the council on 17
February 2022. While consultation is not undertaken on the capital
programme as a whole, individual scheme proposals do follow a
consultation process with local councillors and residents.

Options

43.

The Executive Member has been presented with a proposed
programme of schemes, which have been developed to implement
the priorities of the Local Transport Plan (LTP3) and the Council
Plan.



Page 96

Analysis

44. The programme has been prepared to meet the objectives of LTP3

and the Council Plan as set out below; implement the Active Travel
Programme; implement the City Centre Access & Security Scheme;
develop the proposals for a new rail station at Haxby; progress the
Outer Ring Road upgrades and Station Frontage major schemes;
and progress the Bus Stop Improvement Plan capital programme.

Council Plan

45. The Council Plan has Eight Key Outcomes:

46.

47.

48.

Well-paid jobs and an inclusive economy

A greener and cleaner city

Getting around sustainably

Good health and wellbeing

Safe communities and culture for all

Creating homes and world-class infrastructure
A better start for children and young people
An open and effective council

The Transport Capital Programme supports the prosperity of the
city by improving the effectiveness, safety and reliability of the
transport network, which helps economic growth and the
attractiveness for visitors and residents. The programme aims to
reduce traffic congestion through a variety of measures to improve
traffic flow, improve public transport, provide better facilities for
walking and cycling, and address road safety issues.

Enhancements to the efficiency and safety of the transport network
will directly benefit all road users by improving reliability and
accessibility to other council services across the city.

The capital programme also addresses improvements to the
transport network raised by residents such as requests for
improved cycle routes, measures to address safety issues and
speeding traffic, and improvements at bus stops such as real-time
information display screens and new bus shelters.

Implications

49.

The following implications have been considered.



Page 97

Financial:

As set out in this report, the budget for the 2022/23 Transport
Capital Programme has been reviewed and some funding has
been transferred to 2023/24 to reflect the expected timescales
for scheme implementation. Some amendments have also been
made to allocations for individual schemes following revised
cost estimates for the proposed work, and the Bus Service
Improvement Plan (BSIP) grant funding has been added to the
2022/23 transport budget.

If the proposals in this report are accepted, the Place Transport
Capital Programme budget for 2022/23 would be reduced to
£26,333k, as set out in Annex 1 to this report.

Human Resources (HR): In light of the financial reductions in
recent years, the Executive Member’s attention is drawn to the
fact that the majority of Highways and Transport staff are now
funded either through the capital programme or external
funding. This core of staff are also supplemented by external
resources commissioned by the council to deliver capital
projects, which provides flexible additional capacity and reflects
the one-off nature of capital projects.

Equalities:

The Council recognises, and needs to take into account its
Public Sector Equality Duty under Section 149 of the Equality
Act 2010 (to have due regard to the need to eliminate
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
prohibited conduct; advance equality of opportunity between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it and foster good relations between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it in the exercise of a public
authority’s functions).

All schemes in the transport capital programme are required to
carry out an Equalities Impact Assessment as part of the project
management process for individual schemes.

The impact of the proposals on protected characteristics has
been considered as follows:



Page 98

Age — Neutral;

Disability — Neutral;

Gender — Neutral,

Gender reassignment — Neutral;
Marriage and civil partnership— Neutral;
Pregnancy and maternity — Neutral,
Race — Neutral;

Religion and belief — Neutral;

Sexual orientation — Neutral,

Other socio-economic groups including :
o Carer - Neutral (see Disability);

o Lowincome groups — Neutral;

o Veterans, Armed Forces Community— Neutral.

Legal:

As this report proposes to amend the 2022/23 Directorate of
Place Transport Capital Programme, this may mean that any
existing arrangements with external funders (e.g., DT, WYCA,
etc.) may also require amendment subject to any necessary
consent(s) to any required amendment(s) being obtained from
the relevant external funders. It is recommended that these
funders and Legal Services are contacted as soon as possible
to ensure that all necessary approvals are in place and that any
amendments are carried in accordance with the relevant terms
and conditions, as well as any relevant Contract Procedure
Rules and/or standing orders.

Any proposed works and services will need to be commissioned
via a compliant procurement route under the Council’s Contract
Procedure Rules and, if applicable, the Public Contract
Regulations 2015. Appropriate forms of contracts will need to
be drafted and completed with support from Legal Services.

Crime and Disorder: There are no Crime & Disorder
implications.

Information Technology (IT): There are no IT implications.
Property: There are no Property implications.

Other: There are no other implications.



Page 99

Risk Management

50. For larger schemes in the programme, separate risk registers will
be prepared, and measures taken to reduce and manage risks as
the schemes are progressed throughout 2022/23.



Page 100

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Dave Atkinson James Gilchrist

Head of Highways & Director — Planning Transport and

Transport Environment

Directorate of Economy & Report ¥ | Date 6/1/2023

Place Approved

Tel No. 01904 553481

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Wards Affected: List wards or tick box to indicate all All |7

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:

Directorate of Place Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 Budget
Report — 22 March 2022

Directorate of Place Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 Consolidated
Report — 19 July 2022

Directorate of Place 2022/23 Transport Capital Programme Monitor 1
Report — 18 October 2022

Annexes
Annex 1: 2022/23 Transport Budget
Annex 2: 2022/23 Transport Capital Programme



Page 101

Annex 1 - 2022/23 Transport Capital Budget

Funding

Transport Schemes

Local Transport Plan Grant
Developer Funding

Traffic Signal Asset Renewal Programme
Bishophill/ Micklegate Access Control
Pedestrian Crossing Review

Access Barriers

CCTV Asset Renewal

Car Park Improvements

LTP Schemes

NCN Route 65 Improvements

Bus Service Improvement Plan
Active Travel Programme

Cycling Schemes

Active Travel Fund Grant
Maintenance

Bridge Maintenance

Flood Sign Renewal

Major Schemes

Outer Ring Road Dualling

York Station Gateway

City Centre Access & Security

Haxby Station

Tadcaster Road Transport Enhancements
Castle Gateway Transport Development
Electric Vehicle Fleet Infrastructure
Hyper Hubs

Electric Vehicle Charging

Smarter Travel Evolution Programme
Scarborough Bridge Cycle Routes
Clean Air Zone

ZEBRA Grant

Total

2022/23 Amend Revised

Budget ments Budget
(E1,000s) (£1,000s) (£1,000s)
1,582 1,582
87 87
1,716 -450 1,266
0 0
100 -40 60
191 -71 120
32 32
38 38
1,071 -440 631
378 -348 30
2,375 2,375
554 -232 322
1,348 -807 541
397 397
200 -180 20
5,175 -875 4,300
5,385 5,385
3,442 -2,522 920
2,500 -1,865 635
1,317 400 1,717
50 50
1,355 1,355
326 187 513
337 -187 150
618 -348 270
113 113
20 20
3,401 3,401
31,736 -5,403 26,333



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103

Annex 2

Current Proposed
2022/23 Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 2022/23 Funding Source
Budget Budget
£1,000s £1,000s
Public Transport
P&R Site Upgrades 60 40 Local Transport Plan
Rawcliffe Bar Resurfacing 360 360 Local Tr_ansport Plan/
Council Resources
Bus Stop Improvements 100 50 Local Transport Plan
RTPI Improvements 100 -
Bus 'Tap Off' Readers 200 200 Local Transport Plan
S106 Bus Stop Improvements 49 49 Developer Funding
Public Transport - Carryover Schemes
Dial & Ride Buses 40 190 Local Tr.ansport Plan/
Council Resources
Regional RTPI Programme 15 15 Council Resources
P&R Token Barriers 35 35 Council Resources
Public Transport - BSIP Programme
Bus Priority - Radial Routes 500
Bus Priority - City Centre 500
Park & Ride Interchanges 500
Bus Stop Upgrades 50 BSIP Grant
Real-Time Information Screens 800
Small-Scale Bus Priority Schemes 25
[Total Public Transport [ 959 | 3314 |
Traffic Management
Air Quality Monitoring 20 20 Local Transport Plan
Signing & Lining 20 20 Local Transport Plan
TSAR Programme
Monks Cross Drive Crossing
Barbican Road/ Paragon Street Junction
Green Lane/ Front Street Junction
Pavement/ Piccadilly/ Coppergate Junction
M_alton Road/ New Lane_Junctlon Council Resources/
Bishopgate Street Crossing 1,716 1,266 Government Grant
Hull Road/ Melrosegate Junction
Heworth Green/ Dodsworth Ave Junction
Hull Road/Tang Hall Lane
Fossbank/ Layerthorpe/ Peasholme Green
Sim Balk Lane/ Tadcaster Road Junction
Main Street Fulford Crossing
TSAR Previous Years
ANPR Bus Lane Enforcement 245 65 Local Transport Plan

Page 1 of 5




Page 104

Annex 2

Current Proposed
2022/23 Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 2022/23 Funding Source
Budget Budget
£1,000s £1,000s
Traffic Management - Carryover Schemes
Bishophill/ Micklegate Access Control -
Hungate CCTV 38 38 Developer Funding
The Groves Traffic Restrictions (Experimental TRO) 80 80 Local Transport Plan
Stadium Signage 65 65 Council Resources
Coppergate One-Way Closure 25 25 Local Transport Plan
. . . . Local Transport Plan/
Piccadilly Highway Review 50 50 Council Resources
CCTV Asset Renewal 32 32 Council Resources
Car Park Improvements (Coppergate Refurbishment) 38 38 Council Resources
Wigginton Road Multi-Modal Study 27 27 Council Resources
Fulford Road Corridor Improvements 28 28 Council Resources
City Centre Footstreets VMS 7 7 Council Resources
[Total Traffic Management | 2391 | 1761 |
Pedestrian & Cycle Schemes
Access Barrier Review 191 120 Council Resources
Cycle Minor Schemes 25 25 Local Transport Plan
Business Cycle Parking 20 20 Local Transport Plan
Pedestrian Minor Schemes 10 10 Local Transport Plan
Dropped Kerbs
City-Wide Dropped Kerbs 40 50 Local Transport Plan
City Centre Dropped Kerbs 105 60 Local Trlansport Plan/
Council Resources
Dropped Kerbs Additional Funding 250 50 Council Resources
Pedestrian Crossing Review
Wetherby Road
Heworth Green (near Malton Ave)
Main St Copmanthorpe
Kent Street/ Fawcett Street 100 60 Council Resources
Folk Hall, New Earswick
Water Lane near Rawcliffe Drive
New Lane near Anthea Drive
Peasholme Green/ St Saviour's Place
PROW Structural Upgrades 75 40 Local Transport Plan
Riverside Cycle Path Improvements (York Central) 20 20 Local Transport Plan
Sola_r Sys_tem Cycle Route Improvements (Tadcaster Road to 150 150 Local Transport Plan
Playing Fields)
NCN 65 Route Improvements
Millennium Bridge Approaches 378 30 Council Resources
Other NCN65 Schemes
[Total Pedestrian & Cycle Schemes [ 1364 | 635 |

Page 2 of 5




Page 105

Annex 2

Current Proposed
2022/23 Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 2022/23 Funding Source
Budget Budget
£1,000s £1,000s
Safety Schemes
2023/24 Programme development 5 5
Osbaldwick Primary SRS 5 5
St Mary's Primary - Askham Richard 5 5
OLQM Primary / Hamilton Drive 5 5 Local Transport Plan
Primary School — Road Closures 5
St Barnabas Primary School 5 5
Millfield Lane (Manor CoE school) 5 5
Local Safety Schemes
2023/24 Programme Development / Review of Cluster Sites 10 10
Foss Islands Road / Navigation Road LSS 30 30
Fawcett Street / Paragon Street LSS 5 5
Monkgate Roundabout Review 20 10 Local Transport Plan/
RSA4 Reviews > 5 Council Resources
Minor Local Safety Schemes 5 5
Front Street / Askham Lane LSS 10 10
Wetherby Road / Ridgeway LSS 5 5
Heworth Green / Eboracum Way LSS 3 3
A166 / Bore Tree Baulk LSS 10 10
Danger Reduction Schemes
2023/24 Programme Development 2 2
Reactive Danger Reduction 10 10
a) Heslington Road raised kerbs 2 2
b) Union Terrace car park refuge island 5 5
Stockton Lane VAS 15 15 Local Transport Plan/
Askham Lane / Ridgeway Roundabout DR 25 25 Council Resources
Green Lane Roundabout, Clifton DR 1 2
Jockey Lane / Monks Cross Link DR 3 3
Wheldrake Lane / Elvington Road DR 15 20
Black Dike Lane DR 5 5
Speed Management Schemes
2023/24 Programme Development 5 5
Alness Drive SMS 5 5
Heslington Lane 20mph Zone Review 13 13
Howard Link Rawcliffe SMS 3 3
New Lane Acomb SMS 5 5 Lgﬁﬂg?gse‘;%r: rz:‘:/
Rawcliffe Drive SMS 5 5
Irwin Avenue SMS 5 5
Grassholme SMS 5 5
2022/23 VAS Review 20 20
[Total Safety Schemes 287 | 278
Scheme Development
Future Years Scheme Development 50 50
Previous Years Costs 50 50 Local Transport Plan
Staff Costs 200 200
[Total Scheme Development 300 | 300
[Total Integrated Transport 5301 | 6,288

Page 3 of 5



Page 106

Annex 2

Current Proposed
2022/23 Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 2022/23 Funding Source
Budget Budget
£1,000s £1,000s
Active Travel Programme
Cycle Schemes 62
Rougier Street/ Tanners Moat Cycle Gap
Fishergate Gyratory Ped & Cycle Scheme
Hospital Fields Road Cycle Improvements 60
Skeldergate - Cycle Improvements at Build-outs 150
Fulford Road - Frederick House Improvements
Tang Hall Lane/ Foss Islands Path Access
Nunthorpe Grove/ Southlands Road Improvements 554 Council Resources
Nunnery Lane/ Victor Street - Puffin to Toucan
Manor Lane/ Shipton Road Improvements 25
Chocolate Works Riverside Path Improvements
University East-West Campus Link
City Centre North-South Cycle Route 25
Orbital Cycle Route - Lawrence Street/ James Street/
Regent Street Crossing Improvements
Navigation Road One-Way 5 10 LTP Grant
City Centre Bridges 15 15 Council Resources
University Road (Heslington Hall) Pedestrian Improvements 95 95 Local Transport Plan
Active Travel Fund
Active Travel Fund Tranche 2 233
A1237 Ouse Bridge Cycle Route
A19 Shipton Road Cycle Route
A19 Shipton Road Phase 1 Interventions (New) 25
: . . G t Grant
A19 Shipton Road Phase 2 Active Travel Corridor Scheme 998 overnment tran /
Council Resources
City Centre Accessibility: St George's Field Crossing 148
Wheldrake to Heslington Pedestrian & Cycle Improvements
Acomb Road Cycle Lanes
People Streets (Ostman Road) 50
Active Travel Fund - Additional Funding
Cycle Parking Improvements 150 25 Government Grant
People Streets (Clifton Green Primary & Badger Hill Primary) 200 60 Government Grant
|Total Active Travel Programme | 2,017 | 983
Structural Maintenance
Bridge Maintenance 397 397 Council Resources
Flood Sign Renewal 200 20 Council Resources
[Total Structural Maintenance | 597 | 417

Page 4 of 5




Page 107

Annex 2

Current Proposed
2022/23 Transport Capital Programme 2022/23 2022/23 Funding Source
Budget Budget
£1,000s £1,000s
Major Schemes
Outer Ring Road 5,175 4,300 Government Grant
York Station Gateway 5,385 5,385 Government Grant
City Centre Access & Security (HVM) 3,442 920 Council Resources
Haxby Station 2,500 635 Government Grant
Council Resources
Tadcaster Road Transport Improvements 1,317 1,717 Government Grant
Castle Gateway Transport Improvements 50 50 Government Grant
EV Fleet Infrastructure Upgrade 1,355 1,355 Council Resources
Hyper Hubs 326 513 Council Resources
Electric Vehicle Charging 337 150 Council Resources
Smarter Travel Evolution Programme 618 270 Government Grant
. Government Grant/
Scarborough Bridge Cycle Schemes 270 160 Local Transport Plan
Clean Air Zone 20 20 Council Resources
ZEBRA Grants 3,401 3,401 Government Grant
[Total Major Schemes | 24108 | 18878 |
[Total Programme [ 32,114 | 26,5566 |
[Overprogramming [ 378 | 234 |
[Total Budget | 31,736 | 26,333 |

Page 5 of 5




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109 Agenda Item 7

COUNCIL

a,

Decision Session — Executive Member for 17 January 2023
Transport

Report of the Director of Environment, Transport and Planning
Stadium Parking Impact — Huntington Area TRO Consultation
Summary

1. The report considers the representations received to the Consultation to
introduce parking restrictions in the Huntington area due to obstructive
parking that has been occurring on stadium match days. The Executive
Member will be asked to make a decision on the implementation of the
proposal.

2. This report will also provide information on the future of the Experimental
Traffic Regulation Order (ETRO), which was put in place for the
Residents Parking Area on Forge Close and Saddlers Close. The
Executive Member will be asked to decide on the future operation of the
scheme and if future charges are to be brought into operation should the
scheme continue to operate.

Recommendations
3. The Executive is asked to:

1) Approve the proposal for ‘No Waiting at any time’ restrictions in the
Priory Wood Way area as proposed.

Reason: The introduction of junction protection at these locations will
increase safety at these locations subject to obstructive parking on
match days and allow York Council Civil Enforcement Officers to
enforce the restrictions against obstructive parking.

2) Approve the Advertisement of further restrictions on the streets
mentioned within this report and to delegate authority to the Director
of Environment, Transport and Planning to approve where to propose
restrictions, with any objections received to the Statutory Consultation



Page 110

to be reported back to a future Executive Member for Transport
Decision Session.

Reason: To respect the views of the residents on those streets about
their requests for additional restrictions to help with issues related to
match day parking.

3) Approve the removal of the Experimental Residents Parking Scheme
from Forge Close and Saddlers Close.

Reason: To respect the views of the residents who objected to the
making of the Experimental Order permanent in response to the
consultation.

Background

4.

As part of the development of the new sport stadium in the Huntington
area, there was an experimental introduction of parking restrictions in the
area to try and reduce the impact on residential streets. It was not clear
how spectators would choose to travel to the stadium and to what extent
the on-street parking levels would be affected. The initial roll out of
restrictions comprised of the introduction of single and Double yellow
lines on New Lane and the introduction of the ETRO for the residents
Parking Scheme on Forge Close and Saddlers Close, which were the
nearest residential streets to the stadium.

The Council received complaints from residents and Ward Clirs about an
increase in parking on some streets in the Huntington area on match
days. The reports were not restricted to one street and the Council’s
Civil Enforcement Officers had reported an increase in parking but not in
contradiction of the current restrictions in the area.

A consultation was undertaken with resident about the impact of stadium
parking on street, the results of the consultation were reported to the
Executive Member and a decision was made to propose the introduction
of ‘No Waiting’ Restrictions on some streets in the Huntington Area. A
proposal (Annex A) was created to introduce restrictions at junctions to
remove the obstructive parking away from the junctions, which was
affecting vehicle access/egress into/out of the streets. We posted the
Statutory consultation documents (Annex B) to all affected properties on
the 215 October 2022, to make residents aware of the proposal and
provide them with an opportunity to comment on the proposal.



Page 111

The ETRO came into operation on the 315 July 2021 for a period of 18
months, this was the second ETRO as the first one had to be revoked,
when works to complete the stadium development were stopped due to
the Coronavirus Pandemic. The charges for the permits which were
required to park on the street during the Experimental period were
initially waived, although residents were made aware that this would
need to be re-evaluated if the scheme was to be made permanent.

A letter (Annex C) was sent to all properties within the area of the
residents parking scheme on 215t November 2022 to enquire about their
views on the scheme and the potential introduction of charges for the
residents parking area.

Consultation

‘No Waiting’ Restrictions Consultation

9.

10.

11.

12.

The proposal for the ‘No Waiting at any time’ consultation received 13
representations to the proposal, two of which were in favour (Annex D), 6
in objection (Annex E) and 5 to provide information on other areas of
concern (Annex F).

One of the representations received in favour was initially against the
proposal for No waiting restrictions at the junctions, as it was wrongly
believed that the proposed restrictions would apply to in the whole area.
When the reasoning for the proposal and confirmation of the extent of
the proposal was explained to the resident, they felt it was a sensible
proposal and withdrew their objection and were in favour of the proposal.
The other representation in favour did also have some queries about
how it would affect the parking of their vehicles, once the proposal was
explained in more detail, they were happy with the proposal.

Three of the six objections to the proposal were in relation to residents
concerned that the restrictions would remove available parking for
visitors or trades people, which would be to the detriment of the
residents. The response also queried why the area needs a restriction
that is in place all the time when the parking activity associated with
events at the stadium is only an issue every couple of weeks and only for
3-4 hours at a time.

There was concern that the introduction of restrictions at the junctions
will encourage more vehicles to park on nearby narrow side streets like
Oak Glade.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 112

The responses also questioned why the stadium management are not
doing more to encourage public transport or working with Vangarde
management to allow parking and provide more information about when
it is allowed, as there appears to be a misunderstanding about the
eligibility for stadium parking at night-time matches.

One resident did also question the wording on the stadium website, as it
stated that parking nearby and walking to the stadium may be a good
option. On further investigation the statement was not on the stadium
website - it was on another website, which was providing information
about the stadium for visiting fans during the Rugby World Cup. The
company responsible for the website have since been contacted and
requested to amend the website which has now happened.

The consultations also encouraged other residents in the Huntington
area to contact the Council about issues with parking in the area, with
two responses highlighting the issue on the link road between Anthea
Drive and Whenby Grove. The residents are highlighting issues with
vehicles parking close to the junctions, which is causing issues with
vehicles accessing and exiting the street. A resident did provide
information about a dangerous manoeuvre, which nearly resulted in a
cyclist been knocked off their bike, a contributing factor was the line of
parked vehicles which the cyclist had to overtake.

The consultation also resulted in receipt of concerns from a resident
about parking on New Lane (between Jockey Lane and Priory Wood
Way), which is seeing an increase in long term parking along that section
of the road, which cannot be associated with the stadium. The resident
in question did actually suggest that the area should have a 4 hour limit,
to enable the area to be available for parking for church goers and
parking for the stadium.

The other areas that have been asked to be reviewed were Brockfield
Park Drive area and Straylands Grove (between Malton Road and
Elmfield Terrace). In Brockfield Park Drive area it has been reported
that the situation has got gradually worse over time and obstructing
vehicles from leaving their streets. The issue raised on Straylands
Grove has been associated to the stadium and Dog walkers utilising the
Monk Stray, which is obstructing the view of vehicles accessing
Straylands Grove from Elmfield Terrace.



Page 113

Residents’ Parking ETRO Consultation

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

The proposal for the Residents Parking ETRO received only one
representation to the experimental Order, which was against the
permanent introduction, this was received within the first couple of weeks
of operation. As no further information was received from residents of
the Residents Parking Area, it was decided to write to residents again to
discover if their views had changed and to enquiry about their views on
pricing plan for the permits should it be made permanent.

The additional consultation letter received 14 responses: 2 in favour
(Annex G) of making the Order permanent and 12 against (Annex H) the
continuation of the Residents’ Parking Zone.

The two comments in favour of the scheme would like to see it made
permanent due to the positive impact the scheme has had, when the
stadium was initially opened there was an issues until enforcement
began and the street is no longer seeing a parking issue. One resident
would like the permanent Order to be made due to the issues that other
streets in Huntington are having and thy fear that those issues will be
seen on their street if the Residents Parking Scheme is removed.

Only one resident in favour of the scheme would be willing to pay the
charges to ensure that the street is protected, the other resident does not
have off street parking and is concerned about the cost, as they have 2
vehicles (one is a works vehicle), that need to be parked on street and
require a permit.

The representation against the making permanent of the Residents’
Parking Scheme for Forge Close and Saddler Close are in the main to
do with residents not feeling that the scheme is required and concerns
about the cost that residents would pay for the scheme. They do not feel
the charge for a full year would be justified when the scheme would only
be in operation on match days.

There were some representations stating that the scheme has not been
helpful for residents and the enforcement of the restrictions have only
been against residents and their visitors, who were not aware of when
match days are, this has led to confusion as information on the match
days is not made available to the residents. There were also
representations that stated that the streets did not receive enough
enforcement to justify the scheme operation.



24.

25.

26.

Page 114

The residents do not feel that the street layout lends itself to high levels
of additional parking and there is not currently a problem with parking on
the streets. The majority of the residents have off-street parking and
therefore do not require permits. The scheme would therefore be to the
detriment of the properties without off-street parking who would be
required to purchase permits for their vehicles.

The restrictions for the experimental order only allow for enforcement on
match days at the nearby stadium but the street does see parking for
people attending the nearby church and this does not create any
problem for the street. It has been stated that the parking of vehicles
during matches would be limited and for a short duration of time on each
occasion.

Some of the representations have questioned how the experimental
Order has been evaluated and how can it be judged as the stadium was
not operational when the experimental restrictions came into force.

Options

‘No Waiting’ Restrictions Consultation

27.

28.

29.

Option 1. Implement the restrictions as proposed.
This is the recommended option as it will protect the junctions and
remove obstructive parking that has been reported within the area.

Option 2: No further action

This is not the recommended option as it will leave the area open to
obstructive parking and not address the safety concerns raised by
residents and Ward ClIrs.

Option 3: Advertise Additional restrictions
This is the recommended option as it will help to address the safety
concerns raised by residents in the areas mentioned within the report.

Residents’ Parking ETRO Consultation

30.

Option 4: Make the Residents Parking Permanent with charges
This is not the recommended option as the residents are not in favour of
the continuation of the scheme and do not feel that they should have to
pay for the stadium having a lack of parking.



31.

32.

Page 115

Option 5: Make the Residents Parking Permanent without charges

This is not the recommended option as the residents are not in favour of
the continuation of the scheme as they do not feel that there is a benefit
to making the order permanent.

Option 6: Remove the Residents Parking Scheme

This is the recommended option, as resident parking schemes have
always been resident led and the residents are not in favour of the
continuation of the scheme.

Analysis

‘No Waiting’ Restrictions Consultation

33.

34.

35.

The restrictions proposed in the consultation were to introduce waiting
restrictions at the junctions for 10m in each direction, to help increase
safety at the junctions, to help vehicles access/egress the streets safely.
The proposal will still provide the Council Civil Enforcement Officers an
opportunity to enforcement obstructive parking close to the junctions, this
has not been proposed to restrict the parking activities of
residents/visitors.

The proposal will not remove vehicles from parking on the streets whilst
visiting the stadium for sporting fixtures, this could only be managed with
more extensive restrictions or a Residents Parking scheme but previous
consultations with residents indicate that they would not be in favour of
such a proposal. A residents parking scheme or more extensive parking
restrictions are likely to be more restrictive for the residents than the
impact of vehicles parking whilst visiting the stadium during sporting
fixtures.

The information provided on the additional areas has highlighted a safety
issue on the Link Road between Anthea Drive and Whenby Grove and
Brockfield Park Drive area, as they do seem to be a popular streets to
park during sporting fixtures but the vehicles are causing an obstruction
to other road users. Theses streets were subject to the original
consultation and the residents were not in favour of extensive restrictions
or Residents Parking, so any proposal for the streets are likely to be in
line with the current proposal and provide junction protection to make it
easier to access/egress from the Link Road and the roads off Brockfield
Park Drive.



Page 116

36. The issues reported on New Lane and Straylands Grove is not solely a

result of the stadium and relates to other contributing factors. The area
on New Lane has previously been proposed for restrictions prior to the
stadium opening and the local community requested that restrictions
should not be placed along this stretch to allow for some visitor parking
for residents and the Church. The stretch of Straylands Grove that has
been highlighted as an issue does have ‘No Waiting at any time’
restrictions at is junction with Malton Road, these were introduced to
remove vehicles from parking too close to the junction whilst visiting
Monk Stray. The issue of vehicles parking in this area predates the
stadium but this has provided another contributing factor for the area and
as there are no restrictions at the Elmfield Terrace Junction, it is creating
a large problem which needs to be reviewed.

Residents’ Parking ETRO Consultation

37.

38.

39.

The responses from the recent consultation do indicate that the residents
of Forge Close and Saddlers Close are not in favour of making the
Resident’s Parking area permanent. The council has always stated that
residents’ parking schemes will be resident led so the resident’s
response to this consultation should be listened to.

The residents enquiring about how the experimental Order will be
evaluated are correct that there was not a base line as the stadium was
not operational when the restrictions came into operation. The impact on
the other areas of Huntington would indicate that the Residents’ parking
area is required, and the area will see an increase in parking levels on
match days if the restrictions is not made permanent.

It was reported by one objector that they do not see an issue on the
street due to the signage at the entrance, it should be noted that if the
residents’ parking scheme is removed so will the signage that has
deterred people from parking on the street.

Council Plan

40. The Council Plan has Eight Key Outcomes:

Well-paid jobs and an inclusive economy
A greener and cleaner city
Getting around sustainably
Good health and wellbeing



Page 117

Safe communities and culture for all

Creating homes and world-class infrastructure
A better start for children and young people
An open and effective council

The recommended proposal contributes to the Council being an open
and effective Council as it responds to the request from the residents in a
positive way.

Implications
41. This report has the following implications:

Financial — The implementation of any approved restriction or further
consultation of any proposed restrictions will be funded from funds deposited
by the Stadium Management group under a Section 106 Agreement to fund
any required amendments to the Traffic Regulation Order.

Human Resources — If implemented, enforcement will fall to the Civil
Enforcement Officers necessitating an extra area onto their work load.

Equalities — The Council recognises its Public Sector Equality Duty under
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (to have due regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other prohibited
conduct; advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and foster
good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and persons who do not share it in the exercise of a public authority’s
functions). The impact of the recommendation on protected characteristics
has been considered as follows:

e Age — Positive, the introduction of parking restrictions at the junctions
will remove obstructive parking near the junctions and improve visibility
for residents crossing at the crossing points for all age of resident;

¢ Disability — Positive, the introduction of parking restrictions at junctions

will remove obstructive parking blocking the dropped crossing points at
the junctions and to help provide a safe crossing point;

Gender — Neutral;

Gender reassignment — Neutral;

Marriage and civil partnership— Neutral;

Pregnancy and maternity - Neutral,

Race — Neutral;



Page 118

¢ Religion and belief — Neutral,
e Sexual orientation — Neutral,
e Other socio-economic groups including :
o Carer - Neutral;
o Low income groups — Neutral;
o Veterans, Armed Forces Community— Neutral.

Legal — The Traffic Management Act 2004 places a duty on local traffic
authorities to manage the road network with a view to securing, as far as
reasonably practicable, the expeditious, convenient, and safe movement of all
types of traffic. The Council regulates traffic by means of traffic regulation
orders (TROs) made under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984 which can
prohibit, restrict, or regulate the use of a road, or any part of the width of a
road, by vehicular traffic. After the public notice of proposals for a TRO has
been advertised, any person can object to the making of the TRO. The
recommendation in this report requires the decision maker to consider all
objections received during the statutory consultation period before deciding
whether to make the TRO unchanged/without modifications or to make it with
modifications that reduce the restrictions or not to proceed with it. This will
enable the Council to comply with the requirements of both the Road Traffic
Act 1984 and the Local Authorities Traffic Orders (Procedure) (England and
Wales) Regulations 1996.

Crime and Disorder — None
Information Technology — None

Land — None

Other — No other implications identified.

Risk Management - There is an acceptable level of risk associated with the
recommended option.



Page 119

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:

Darren Hobson James Gilchrist

Traffic Management Team Director for Transport, Highways and

Leader Environment

Transport

Tel No. (01904) 551367 Report N Date 6/1/2023
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Financial: Legal:
Name Jayne Close Name Gerard Allen
Title Accountant Title Senior Lawyer

Tel No. Tel No. 01904554175 Tel No. 01904 552004

Wards Affected: Huntington All

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s158942/Stadium%20Parking%20i
mpact.pdf

Annexes

Annex A — Huntington Proposed Restrictions

Annex B — Residents Letter Huntington

Annex C — Experimental Residents Parking Letter

Annex D — Representation in Favour to Parking Restrictions

Annex E — Objections to Parking Restrictions

Annex F —Issues in the Stadium Area

Annex G — Representation in favour of Permanent Residents Parking
Restrictions

Annex H — Objections to the Residents Parking Scheme


https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s158942/Stadium%20Parking%20impact.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s158942/Stadium%20Parking%20impact.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



T¢T abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 123
Ny CITY OF Place Based Services

I o R K West Offices
Station Rise
COUNCIL
8 York
YO1 6GA

Contact: Darren Hobson

Tel: 01904 551367

Email: darren.hobson@york.gov.uk
Ref: ADB/DH/528

Date: 215 October 2022

Dear Occupier
Proposed Waiting Restrictions — Huntington

It is proposed to introduce ‘No Waiting at any time’ restrictions in Doriam Avenue,
Firwood Whin, Hawthorn Spinney, Merlin Covert, Oak Glade, Priory Wood Way and
Willow Glade, Huntington to the extent described in the ‘Notice of Proposals’ (Notice)
and as set out in the plan. This is to maintain safety at a location being adversely
affected by indiscriminate/obstructive parking on match days at the nearby sports
stadium. Should you require any further information in regard to this item then please
contact the project manager, Darren Hobson, telephone (01904) 551367, email
darren.hobson@york.gov.uk.

| do hope you are able to support the proposal but should you wish to object then please
write, giving your grounds for objection, to the Director of Economy and Place at the
address shown on the Notice of Proposals, to arrive no later than the date specified in
the Notice.

Yours faithfully

Darren Hobson

Traffic Management Team Leader
Network Management

Enc. Documentation

Cc —CliIr K. Orrell; ClIr C. Runciman; Clir C. Cullwick

www.york.gov.uk

Director: Neil Ferris


mailto:darren.hobson@york.gov.uk

Page 124

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
NOTICE OF PROPOSALS
THE YORK PARKING, STOPPING AND WAITING (AMENDMENT) (NO 14/56)
TRAFFIC ORDER 2022

Notice is hereby given that City of York Council, in exercise of powers under Sections 1, 2, 4, 32,

35, 45, 46, 53 and Schedule 9 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act, 1984 ("the Act") and of all other

enabling powers and after consultation with the Chief Officer of Police in accordance with

Schedule 9 of the Act, proposes to make an Order which will have the effect of:

Introducing ‘No Waiting at any time’ restrictions in Huntington, as follows:

(a) Doriam Avenue, on both sides, between the projected southern kerbline of Priory Wood Way and a
point 10 metres south from the said line;

(b) Firwood Whin, on both sides:

() between a point 10 metres north from the projected northern kerbline of Priory Wood Way and a
point 10 metres south from the projected southern kerbline of Priory Wood Way;

(i) between the projected southern kerbline of Willow Glade and a point 10 metres south from the
said line;

(c) Hawthorn Spinney, on its east side, between a point 10 metres north from the projected northern
kerbline of Priory Wood Way and a point 10 metres south from the projected southern kerbline of
Priory Wood Way

(d)Merlin Covert, on both sides, between the projected northern kerbline of Priory Wood Way and a point
10 metres north from the said line;

(e) Oak Glade, on both sides, between a point 10 metres north from the projected northern kerbline of
Priory Wood Way and a point 10 metres south from the projected southern kerbline of Priory Wood
Way;

(f) Priory Wood Way, on both sides:

() between a point 10 metres east from the projected eastern kerbline of Oak Glade and a point 10
metres west from the projected western kerbline of Oak Glade;

(i) between a point 10 metres east from the projected eastern kerbline of Firwood Whin and a point
10 metres west from the projected western kerbline of Firwood Whin;

(i) between a point 10 metres east from the projected eastern kerbline of Merlin Covert and a point
10 metres west from the projected western kerbline of Merlin Covert;

(iv) between the eastern kerbline of Hawthorn Spinney and a point 10 metres east from the said line;

(9) Willow Glade, on its south side, between a point 10 metres east from the projected eastern kerbline of
Firwood Whin and a point 10 metres west from the projected western kerbline of Firwood Whin

A copy of the draft Order, Statement of Reasons for making it and relevant maps can be inspected at the

Reception, West Offices, Station Rise, York, during normal business hours. Objections or other

representations specifying reasons for the objection or representation should be sent to me in writing to

arrive no later than 11" November 2022.

Dated: 215 October 2022 Director of Place

Network Management, West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA
Emall highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

El'Siub. Sta L ELT | | I s pu [l —
- R S A f \‘.
LI 24 |

| T i == SHEREA. l
\1 L Hr—" I \ - m‘;‘ MLDWGLADE ,L riani.a
R g j T —"rl " | J 7T —‘-. ———
(LT "'J LR o
N h N ‘—‘ _{—U“—_ﬂ "'I‘l-lL | |‘ l_EJ I ! f |'3
= N | ) W % % . ) i e
N O B OB/ | SR T [

u) | B SREON BCIRS 5
e Pes P = woe

F o . i — — o

J:,_i I; | - T |J‘. I.: § : l—_J_ L_ f = _‘ L I&_ﬂ\ % gL’_I 7} |JT(’
i | MaciIid MOSERY | R Eiitg ROGRE
A0 TPRIORYOD WAy Ee%duses — WoOD ";i.i.—_* WAY A
il l — —‘;‘ij - — J‘ft. _ IORY WOO) - —
[d 14 ‘—-| ﬂ YA, 0 '-Y‘-‘I ﬁ _ ”T =| ‘1§T;' IV_, = 3 —
.‘ ] \ =, | - = P “ T2 Ry - 13

f . = [ : | — ] a 1r ] | =l M; : [ {5 ]
(e yeTEirey ey g =geial eEEgS
| ] q & sy J S O
BondCRa-R HoEsB o Sealw NCw s

www.york.gov.uk

Director: Neil Ferris


mailto:highway.regulation@york.gov.uk

Page 125

% o

» ciTy oF Economy and Place

YORK west Offes
N COUNCIL Station Rise
York
YO1 6GA

Customer Address
Tel; 01904 551367

Email: darren.hobson@york.gov.uk

Date: 215t November 2022

Dear Resident
Experimental Residents Parking Scheme

The experimental residents parking scheme which was introduced in
Forge Close and Saddlers Close will come to an end on 30" January
2023. The Council have not received any representation to the
experimental Order; therefore the Order could be made permanent.

In the letter dated 30/07/2021, it was stated that “because this zone is to be
introduced on an experimental basis the cost is being waived, though this will
have to be re-evaluated if it is decided to make the zone permanent. Hence,
please bear this in mind when making your response to the experiment.” As
stated above no representations were received, so the Council are unsure
of the impact of introducing charges will have on residents’ perception of
the scheme. The Council do not want to make any formal decision on the
permanent introduction of the scheme whilst it is unclear on Residents’
views associated to charges. The cost of residents’ parking permits can
be found on the Council’s website
(www.york.gov.uk/ParkingPermitCosts), the Council would like to
understand in more detail the impact of introducing charges for this
ResPark Scheme.

We are therefore requesting that residents respond with their views on the
potential charges and how it will affect your views on the scheme
continuing and been made permanent. Representations will need to
specify reasons for the representation, whether they are in support or
objection. The representations should be sent in writing to myself and
arrive no later than Sunday 11" December 2022.

Director: Neil Ferris www.york.gov.uk


http://www.york.gov.uk/ParkingPermitCosts

Page 126
It is proposed that all representations on this matter will be presented to
the Executive Member for Transport at a decision session on 17" January
2023.
Yours faithfully

D. Hobsown

Darren Hobson
Traffic Management Team leader
Network Management

About Residents’ Priority Parking Scheme (ResPark)

Within a ResPark zone a range of permits are available; visit: www.york.gov.uk/ParkingAndPermits for

details.

Most residents will obtain a Household Permit. Tenants can apply in their own right although we also
ask tenants to make their landlords aware of the scheme.

Your new permit will be allocated to a vehicle number plate (known as the vehicle registration mark,
or ‘VRM’) of your choice. Using our Permit Portal, you’ll be able to change the allocation of a permit to
another vehicle (for example, if you have a courtesy car, or need to park another of your cars on
street.

Residents can obtain additional permits if you need them. You can also register visitors (by the day)
online.

Discounted permits are available for low emission vehicles and there’s a surcharge for some higher
emission vehicles.

Permit Type Discounted rate Standard rate Premium rate
Household £49.98 £99.95 £139.00
Additional (1°!) £100.00 £200.00 £280.00
Additional (2"%) £200.00 £400.00 £560.00

HMO residents £87.50 £175.00 -—--

Business £220.00 £440.00 -—--

Director: Neil Ferris www.york.gov.uk


http://www.york.gov.uk/ParkingAndPermits

Page 127

AS a resident of firwood whin i am all in favour of parking proposals to be implemented.
However i do have two queries for clarification:

MY son has a company van parked outside our address

he works normally 05.30am to 18.00 pm how will this affect him , will there be a resident

permit available.
Secondly we have three vehicles on our drive and have need to move them around

as the need arises

how will this affect this situation .
Any information you can give to assist in these queries would be appreciated.

Tuanwe Yo e Moue \ETE=R. ©OF 2l Ocwese Zo 22,
Recpabine ProPosers WATING EsSTRICTIanS Iy ouR  SreseT,
A Tus SURROUMDING AREp |

{ INLIVUE Like To oBTecr = Tue STtrRomeesT

PorsBe Teews, T  Amy EeSTRicnaaS LWAATSc@=R.  Rang

INTeoDUuecEer I TWS Ag=A .
Amnuaciy | AClRS FeotRALL AmD Cuced |, “Twale ARE
SlanRcanstT (ie., CombPeTITIV= PrrofEssionar ) GANGES

Aot 4o
At “Tws Statiunua . AS SUCW | TTUSTE Als Alounid 3'2_‘5

BAMS Pere  Yenr , Wwed  TTWSlE Acs No Velices  Pagad

N euwlE  Smeec . M= We SSRoSW  ContteZaG PAlnG

(=STZACTionS , Bassd o 40 BauS A Menz, I Hewes AT

A Tims , Torawu~a 2o ‘Hougs PRee. ‘“ear , e Tuses
== _ — —_

AR FezuaesS Twoe Tozgny o2 So cARS Al 1

our. Street | Hae  Nev=R  Cowme  ACesS A Biccer.

OVeErRR. - ReACTiad | To LOUAT [ Comsip=R. To Bz A NoN _\Ssyg
e ALl v urFe .

| looke FfSlwaApd T Youz L=Py , AND =
A U-Tued o  Tusss Plofos®™ RasS .

| am a resident of Priory Wood Way, YO31. | handed a letter in at West Offices on 9 November,
objecting to the proposed waiting restrictions which are planned for our street, and the surrounding
area. | am hoping at this point that you could reply to this message, to acknowledge receipt of my
letter, as | am anxious to know that it reached you before the deadline for objections, which was

stated as 11 November




Page 128

Sorry for the delay in responding, | have had some leave, which has
delayed the response. | can confirm that the letter was receipted by
the reception on the 9" November.

Thank you for your comments on the proposal for Waiting Restrictions
in the Huntington area.

The proposal has been made following consultation with residents in
the area. The council received concerns about vehicles parking too
close to junctions, making it difficult to enter and exit the streets, this
consultation was undertaken to obtain residents view on a defined
proposal. If introduced the proposal will only restrict parking at the
junctions (10 metres in each direction) and has not been proposed to
inconvenience residents.

The report on this matter will be taken to a decision session with the
Executive Member for Transport on 17" January 2023 and the report
will be available to read 7 days before the meeting online at the link
attached
(https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=738&MId=
13553).

Thank you for your reply and comments. | think | have misunderstood the plans - | am looking at
the picture on the reverse of your letter of 21st October. Given what you have said in your e-mail, |
think I am now right in saying that the restrictions will only apply at the junctions, i.e. the curved,
hashed areas on the diagram, and that no restrictions will apply along the 'straight' portions of the
road ?

| can confirm that the restriction will only be put in place around the
junction as shown in the black hatched marking on the attached plan.

As the proposal is only for junction protection, does this change your
mind and original objection on the matter.

Thank you, that has put me at ease. Sounds like the best, sensible proposal, to only restrict on
each of the corners. No objection to that from me.



https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=738&MId=13553
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=738&MId=13553

Page 129

I would like to object to the proposals made regarding the No Waiting
restrictions in Huntington.

My late husband has recently been seen by doctors and nurses all through
the day and night, having to park outside in the street. I have no idea
how we would have coped had these restrictions been in place during his
lifetime.

The number of hours that we have cars parked in the street because of
the football is very limited compared to the hours that are needed by
visitors, workmen, emergency services etc for parking.

By putting these restrictions in place you will be making life so much
more difficult for the residents instead of us putting up with the extra
parking for a short time each week.

I would be delighted if you would reconsider these restrictions and make
life much easier for the residents.

As an alternative perhaps you could put cones out on match days, or make
it residents only parking where we are all given tickets to give to our
visitors.

I look forward to hearing from you in the near future.

| have sent you some photos off bad parking from football fans over last few months | very rang
the police on a few occasions about parking . | have also ask some of the drivers why they are
parking on Priory Wood Way and also Oak Glade . Why on earth would the York Council put
yellow lines on the corners off Priory Wood Way and Oak Glade all this would do is move the cars
into Oak Glade which is only a narrow street . Why can't you just make it residents parking only.

| am a resident of Priory Wood Way, which is now suffering from the parking problems created by
LNER stadium. Just browsing some information about the stadium on their website | have seen
that they actually encourage people attending to park in residential streets, this includes mine.

It states:

"Though a good option on match days if you can get a space, it may be

easier to park nearby, and walk a short distance to the ground”

Is this what was always going to be the case when the stadium location was chosen? Surely the
massive empty car park at John Lewis, Vanguarde, would be an ideal place for visitors to park,
with no cost to them? | have recently been informed someone has decided to put double yellow
lines all over junctions on nearby streets instead. That is not a remedy to the problem, all that is
going to do is push the cars over a larger area and residents that are not affected at the moment-
will become affected.

Could you suggest to LNER stadium to not advertise residential streets as a parking option and
instead highlight the parking available at Vanguarde?

I am not in support of any restrictions been put in place on the streets/residents. Yellow lines,
permits or any other ideas that will affect residents are not a sensible option. As a resident | feel
I'm in a lose/lose situation. Our options are let people visiting the stadium park outside my house
or enforce restrictions which would affect me every day

| live at Priory Wood Way and this is the standard of parking for todays match outside my house. |
do not mind sensible parking on the street outside but in my opinion this is not acceptable, the
vehicle is parked on the pavement. It is ruining the grass and causing an obstruction.

With regard to your letter regarding the proposed waiting restrictions in Huntington, | vehemently
object to this proposal as a resident of the affected streets.

| only have off road parking for my car, my daughters and grandchildren visit me regularly and
park responsibly outside my house, as do other members of my family.




Page 130

This seems an awful lot of unnecessary work and expense not to mention inconvenience for
residents, for the sake of a few vehicles parking for no more than three hours every fortnight, and
not withstanding football is a seasonal game, | am also aware through conversation with local
takeaway and grocery retailers on the Brockfield estate that match days bring a significant and
welcome increase in trade.

Maybe the City of York Council should be in consultation with the private parking companies who
police the existing retail parking areas at Monks Cross, Vangarde, Park & Ride etc. It was these
companies after all that imposed parking time restrictions on these sites in conjunction with the
opening of the eight year overdue and over budget stadium, why penalise local residents to
resolve an issue that isn't really an issue.

What worries us about waiting restrictions on our street is what if we
have visitors or tradesmen working at our house who need to leave their
vehicles in the street for some time, say all day or even overnight. We
probably have the shortest & narrowest drive in the street so it’s not
always possible to fit an extra vehicle up to our own car on our drive.
We also wonder what is the difference between a waiting restriction ( is
that with a driver sat in the vehicle) & a full blown double yellow line
“no parking” area. No restrictions with stadium goers parking in our
street would be preferable to a complete parking ban at all times.




Page 131

Thanks for the reply. Saturday was indeed a non-typical weekend down Anthea and its offshoots
in terms of volume and, for me, the volume is not really the issue. It is the fact that they are
parking so close to, and often opposite, the junctions.

On the 8™ Oct. as | was taking some pictures, a cyclist (yellow jacket) was nearly knocked of her
bike at Whenby / Anthea junction as she had had to go into the middle of the link road to
overtake a line of parked cars on the approach to the junction. The dark coloured Range Rover
overtook her before pulling across to turn left (Whenby1).

Straight after this (Whenby 2), the junction was locked as the car on the verge was preventing the
car coming out of the link road and the car parked on the junction meant that the following car
was blocking entry to the car turning in. I’'m sure it is just a matter of time before somebody is
injured.

We have reported this area for potential TROs previously following
increasing problems at recent matches. However, looking at the photos
some vehicles are parked on the junction of this link road and Anthea
Drive. Is it an offence to park in this way ?

Last night was a rugby world cup match. It is very frustrating that
supporters are using Huntington streets when it is free to park at
Vangarde after 6pm.

Cllr D'Agorne suggested at a recent meeting that fliers be put on cars
parked on side streets advising them of the arrangements for Vangarde -
sadly Club websites have not done this.

The situation is getting more serious each week. We had a report that an
ambulance could not get down a side street at a recent match,

Following on from my previous e mails regarding the road between Jockey Lane and Priory Wood
Way. | would like to point out parking on the east side. We are beginning to get commercial
vehicles parking for weeks on end they are just being left. Whilst | have no problem with parking
as such | do feel a 4 hour time limit would stop this. | was watching a pensioner with a walking aid
attempting to cross at the crossing. She clearly was not able to negotiate as she could not see the
traffic coming along from Huntington. Would a four hour waiting be a detriment to stadium users
and church users? Also you have no restrictions on the west side at present except for

weekends. This causes a problem for residents living on the west side of the road attempting to
access their driveways and obscuring the view pulling out. | hope you are able to address these
issues.

This section of the road is extremely busy as | am sure you are aware and it worries me that there
could be a serious accident before long.

| doubt this is the first email you will have received about this issue from local residents...

I'll preface this by saying | love the new stadium and how it contributes to the local economy, | can
get over the extra traffic and | can plan ahead on matchdays, and sometimes even attend which is
fun! What is becoming an increasing problem is the way many attendees are parking.

Today there were three cars parked at the top of Monk Stray on Straylands, between Elmfield
Terrace and Malton Road. Often dog walkers park here too, and it's dangerous not to mention
illegal (and extremely lazy since there are other safe nearby places to park).

| was wondering if it's possible to raise matchday parking enforcement to the council? and also
potentially double yellow lines on that part of the road as a deterrent?




Page 132

York City Football and Rugby Match day parking. I live just off Brockfield Park Drive and
the level of parking on match days is getting ridiculous. People are dumping cars down
every street and last night | couldn't even get my own car down the street due to the way
people had dumped there cars, something needs to be done to address this matter.




Page 133

Thank you for your letter that | received this morning.
| strongly feel that the parking restrictions need to stay in place.

On match days initially parking was horrendous with people even using
the patch of grass as a car park. Due to the traffic wardens issues
tickets this issue has significantly reduced.

| feel it is unfair to impose a parking cost here.

We would be in essence paying a yearly parking permit for the sake of
match days.... The paper permits are working and are cost effective
sent out once a year.

1-12 Forge close are social housing properties and the only ones in
the area without drive ways. We will be impacted on the most as we
have no-where else to park.

| have a work van that | park here rather that at the offices, so would
have to purchase 2 yearly parking permits.

We are in support of the permit parking scheme. We will be happy to
pay for the permit scheme when it is introduced in full.

It's evident from the state of other nearby streets — and the amount of
people that try to park on our street in spite of the permit zone — that
were the permit parking scheme not in place, Forge Close would be an
absolute nightmare on match days.

Our only feedback on the scheme really would be that the signs are
not very prominent (therefore some people miss them and park here
anyway, albeit a reduced number) and that we have only seen
enforcement officers on a handful of occasions.




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 135

| am writing to you in reference to the Experimental Residents Parking
Scheme been made permanent in Forge Close and Saddlers Close.
After been able to park outside my own property free for over 20 years,
| do not feel it is necessary for parking permits to be now introduced.
Especially as this is mainly due to the fact that a sports stadium was
built with nowhere near enough parking spaces needed.

So | am not willing to pay for someone else’s short sightedness. Plus
the fact it was originally trialled for match days, So | would be paying
for days where parking restrictions certainly are not needed.

With regard to the proposed Residents parking Scheme at Forge
close.

We are unhappy with having to pay to park in our own area due to the
community stadium, The disruption caused by the stadium is minimal
and therefore feel it is unfair on the residents to pay to park for a few
days disruption,

If you feel the scheme needs to be enforced we feel that each
household should be given at least one free permit with an option to
purchase more if needed.

We are not in favour of continuing the residents parking scheme
which was brought into operation on completion of the community
stadium.

We think its extreme to continue with the scheme as we don’t get
many cars parked in our street and in fact the parking tickets handed
out have been to family of residents who had a legitimate reason for
parking in the street — which is annoying.

We think the experiment has acted and will continue to act as a
deterrent for community stadium parkers to use our street. What
would be useful is if we could have a sign in the street reminding
people that it is residents and guests parking only.

| have received your letter dated 21/11/2022 in regard to the changes
of the Permits that will be taking place on my street Saddlers Close.

| feel charging for permits for members of my family to visit me, is just
sheer greed from the council. It's not like | can buy a permit and its
transferable — its allocated to a registration number.

There has been times in the past when | have had workmen at the
house and they have parked outside my house. | have given them the
R66 permit — but how would this work in future?

Also If I was to buy a permit and allocate it to my car — why should |
park on the street — when other cars have been knocked and scaped
as the close is used as a pick up and drop off area on match days?
The council are very happy and quick to give fines on the close to
residents that have by there own fault forgotten to put their permit in
their car window, but when the church car park over the road is full and




Page 136

people park on a Sunday morning outside my house with no permit —
that’s fine.

As you can tell from the tone of this email | object to paying for permits
so my family can see me and park up knowing this will not get a
parking ticket.

Can you please acknowledge receipt of this email and that it will
discussed on 17/01/2023.

| am writing in response to your letter dated 21st November 2022
regarding the Experimental Residents Parking Scheme in Forge Close
and Saddlers Close. | object to the Council’s proposal of making the
Experimental Parking Scheme permanent. The reasons

for my representation IN OBJECTION are as follows:

Reason 1. There is simply unnecessary and no ground for the
existence of a parking scheme.

The neighbourhoods and drivers who park in Saddlers Close have
been very self-conscious and considerate. Currently all residents are
keeping their cars in the house area or in the private flat parking

area that there were no obstructions or disturbance found in the
Saddlers Close. | cannot see any benefits from the scheme, especially
on the residents’ side. On the contrary, roads in Saddlers Close

are narrow and unlikely appropriate to let vehicles park aside on the
road for a long time (please do a site visit in Saddlers Close), | doubt
the scheme may bring an unwanted outcome to let residents park
their vehicles outside their houses and ‘legally’ obstruct the street
when they are willing to pay for a permit. | also wonder if the Council’s
trucks can come into the Close for waste and recycling collection
when the Council allows parking on the road and makes this
arrangement permanent.

Reason 2. The idea of charging (punishing) drivers for parking in a
‘non-busy residential area’ is wrong.

Non-residents coming to park in the Close is a consequence of poor
city planning and it is ridiculous to make us pay the price. People need
to drive and park for visiting their family and friends, shopping or
seeing a match. These are basic needs and people are finding their
own ways to cope without complaining. It is too harsh to punish
people with money during this hard time.

Reason 3. Negative impacts on residents of Saddlers Close are
expected. Our builders, gas engineers, friends, family members will be
charged If they would like to stay for more than 10 mins. That means
the residents may very likely need to pay for the incurred charges
hereafter. The online registrations and payments make life even more
complicated and difficult. Having chosen to live in a village in York,




Page 137

| didn’t expect the costs of such a parking scheme and the fuss that it
would bring.

| hope the Council would understand local people have been facing a
very difficult time when all living costs have been rising, this scheme
which brings no benefit to the residents in Saddlers Close but

incurs extra spendings will surely be unwelcome. Please listen to us
and cancel the money-driven order permanently.

Moreover, it would be helpful if the Council could provide residents
with more background information of the experimental scheme in the
letter. There are new residents around Saddlers Close and they might
struggle to understand what’'s happening, given that the information on
the Council’s website is limited.

May | request my letter to be treated as an official representation.
Thank you.

This is a response to your letter of the 21st of November concerning
the Experimental Residents Parking Scheme.

The previous letters (starting on the 27/01/2020) were sent just before
and during a global pandemic when the stadium was closed. It is
therefore unsurprising that few answered it, but it is good that this
reminder has been sent allowing the residents an opportunity to
respond.

First, and foremost, we own our property and according to the title
deeds, that includes the section up to the hedge at the front of the
property. If this scheme is to be made permanent that would mean that
we, and other property owners would be charged for parking on our
own land, which is unfair.

Second, while the prices are not exorbitant, if the scheme is made
permanent, this will impose another expense on households during a
time of economic recession, record inflation, and sky high energy
prices. The available public transport infrastructure in York is generally
abysmal which means that owning a car is a necessity for most
people.

Third, according to the original letters, imposing the experimental
parking restrictions was aimed at determining whether this was a
viable solution for preventing stadium visitors from parking in
residential streets. However, since the parking restrictions were in
place before the stadium reopened, how will the Council determine the
impact of not having restrictions in place, without repeating the
experiment without the restrictions?

Please can you inform us where and how the details of the evidence
obtained by the experiment will be published?

If the evidence points to such a parking scheme being necessary to
prevent stadium patrons parking in a residential street, it seems that a




Page 138

better solution would be to charge the stadium for parking permits
which would apply during and around the times of events.

In conclusion, given the points stated above, we object to the scheme
being made permanent at this time. We would hope that if the
restrictions are removed, the Council would continue to monitor the
situation and provide options for residents if nuisance parking later
becomes an issue.

| write further to receipt of the letter sent to residents regarding the
completion of the residential parking experiment in Saddlers Close in
relation to the stadium.

| forward here the emails (below) which | sent at the beginning of the
scheme. My mind has not been changed at all.

| would like this restrictive residents parking scheme removing at
the first available opportunity. I do not want it. | never have
wanted it.

| think it is complete overkill, unnecessary and prohibitively expensive
to residents to solve a parking issue which causes little disruption on
our road.

At the moment | cannot afford to heat my house let alone pay
ridiculous charges like this. For two cars, your fees are extortion.

The match day parking is short duration and does not warrant all these
restrictions which will be placed onto residents (visitor parking etc for
24 hours a day 7 days a week) just so a couple of people don’t park
down the street on match days.

| would like it to be recorded that | object in the strongest possible
terms to this scheme.

| look forward to receiving updates.

| write to register my objection to making permanent the experimental
parking scheme in Forge Close and Saddlers Close, Huntington, York
for the following reasons:

. As anew resident | see no need for a parking permit scheme.

. Signage is not clear. | lived here for 4 weeks before | was made
aware by the previous owner of my property that a scheme was
in place. The fact that a scheme is in place had never come up in
conversation with other residents.

« | could find no up to date information about the R66 residents
parking scheme when | looked on the City of York Council
website in October 2022.

« My understanding is that the experimental scheme was put in
place to deter the number of cars parking in the area when
matches take place at the LNER stadium. It is clear to me that
visitors to the LNER stadium do not use this area for parking.




Page 139

. At the most recent stadium match (Saturday 3 December 2022)
no match visitors parked on Forge Close. | noted many people
walking eastwards along Jockey Lane leading me to believe that
they are parking elsewhere.

« During the Women's Rugby League World Cup there was no
evidence that the area was being used for parking, including the
day of the England match which witnessed a near capacity
crowd at the stadium.

. | have never seen a warden checking vehicles.

. At most, on any given day, there are no more than 3 vehicles
using the road to park.

. | have only noted one resident park on the road displaying a
permit.

. The majority of residents park on the driveway to their house.
They therefore have no need for a permit.

« A very small number of residents own two vehicles with limited
driveway parking. Any parking scheme would be adversely
expensive for them.

« A parking permit and an additional permit for visitors is not
needed by residents.

. The cost of permits is unreasonably high. | do not foresee that
residents with driveway parking would purchase a permit.

. A parking permit scheme would raise very little revenue.

. If the council believe that a residents' parking scheme is needed
in this area, | would expect to see a proper survey undertaken to
measure the number of vehicles using the area. | would also
anticipate that data exists to measure the number of vehicles
parking at Monk's Cross on match days.

| trust that my views will be taken into consideration when deciding the
future of this experimental scheme.

| believe that the impact of visitors to the stadium parking in the area
has not been as high as anticipated and that a Residents Parking
Scheme is not warranted.

| reply to your letter dated 21st November 2022, regarding the
experimental parking scheme, | would like to make the following
comments on behalf of both adults at 36 Saddlers Close.

Firstly, the reason we did not make any representations to the
experimental order was to allow as long as possible to monitor the
impact of the Community Stadium and other associated facilities at
Vanguard. It was difficult to make any representations early in the
scheme, especially as part of the experimental period was during
Covid.




Page 140

We would like to make it categorically clear that we are opposed to the
scheme continuing.

Clear, in the current climate, it wouldn’t be financially viable for us, and
even if it were, the scheme would not offer any value for money or
maintain our quality of living at the location.

| have monitored the impact of the new community stadium, and there
has been no noticeable difference to traffic flow at the location. | have
noticed some increased parking further afield and appreciate some of
this may come into our street if the restrictions are lifted.

However, the layout of our street makes it difficult for parking to cause
any issues and in reality, there is very little room. A good test was the
recent back to back rugby league World Cup games, which had no
adverse impact.

The relatively short period of time matches are on for further minimises
and almost eliminates any possible inconvenience.

We would like the parking scheme to cease as soon as possible.

This email is to notify my OBJECTION to a residents parking scheme
for the reasons laid out below.

Firstly as i live in one of the social housing properties without a drive,
this is unfair on myself and other social housing tenants over people
who live in private bought properties with drives who would not need to
pay for a permit.

Also the amount of times the Huntington stadium houses sports events
a year does not justify the cost of permits.

Once again i OBJECT to any residents parking scheme on Forge close
or Saddlers close

| write to you on the subject of a parking scheme in Saddlers Close. |
do not wish to have a parking scheme in my street. We have no
problem with people parking in our street. There are only a couple of of
off street parking spaces in the street and these are taken up by
residents. | do not wish for me or any of my visitors to pay to park in
my own street. We didn’t ask for this you have forced this on us.




Page 141

I age hu'{;} coateol  a  litder

dﬂ«a’w\ JMM{& H;*CJMM e veSackean s
PM S S AT \.j;_m—\ Choare

propoting fov My Piwear oud ooy
Close | el WSlathh Aen \owe AXTe ol
e CAaan Ly LT

Here ot V\Nj
e ”‘ﬂ"‘*““”’q
proposed Ouwtlopmant. 7 Bk Dot
LJ\pv\ Ot L.&/ll\_/u\:fj o ﬂup%emw do

(vaock o Uy sl L oot

-

4o

P&M A s §Phveadk oy e

Ao duneed  w G -‘ﬁ—tw?m,:j E—LMK:J




Page 142

Howe me ven e Ohsna Pur
Sheeak T Avodr Srovn e flaks, pagas
£ ke hewser hove el
dniveriay S0 conn  Allomodake 2
e dache g J?_MJQ. Fon
mmm%‘ Wowe pelfE e
SN MMG\js Ptan e oo ndE
oo oh p-m o ek o
podk. Tt Grovefove  Asome~ to ke
rsv2ay \C)‘-raub"D\.fvw:c:] LreNthne ok dur
Cxpervae . The  Sthrect L ol2o a
'U"E’_ﬂj Aot G - ole - Sove, FEaE Al
i d P"—""’WW Spote M py D

AP .:-i_,ﬁﬂu“‘ﬁ‘b\_mk:j‘:‘.. S oo r"",JOLA_jt e AT

PATREVo o & SN o SMven D’kﬂu(*r frsv
B DA So '«.ﬂ'\:j e g oo ol

Earean ¥ OMneswg  dud Do v e
Sheend o vvodTAn ol de e o
;hf‘fﬁ' 'j'L_{lMI ol uﬁm’wl,ﬁa e o Aecd E
) for & FJ__DM 3y chowyn o yeax,
L:\Jj PV R Ay Co\m,pu._}q et P WY




Page 143

A ﬂ}EV wtj EANE VN pe _d ol PG
N::\j ch MG_\)\M«J’ (2 S bn l o veqe
. - - L
C W‘u\:”f P ch'ﬂ/vv:ﬁ ok %%;T L
M 1‘_&\3 (= W JF'D Lo\t
- | BN \oeoan \oo b
CAGId T e .

Sk g e oAV

- : ) “awtes Ao eldhceves
v ootnd 30 men ' ok TR 004 veu
: ot Ao M“'\i‘_j

. \ -"i-"\_._-a-{: wWe f}ﬂ#
Sl sl - Moz enAE G
‘F‘f"’\’“s ' w  Oyeane NN . 2
o nadne Qv




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4 Acknowledgement of Petitions
	Annex A
	Annex B FieldLane
	Annex C FairfieldsDrive
	Annex D MoorLanePrincessRoad
	Annex E WestminsterRoad
	Annex F StBenedictRoad
	Annex G HighcliffeCourtv2
	Annex H Old Village

	5 Speed Limit Traffic Regulation Order Amendments
	Annex A Speed Limit Amendments Exec Member Report for Final Decision 17 01 2023
	Annex B Speed Limit Amendments Exec Member Report for Final Decision 17 01 2023
	Annex C Speed Limit Amendments Exec Member Report for Final Decision 17 01 2023
	Annex D Speed Limit Amendments Exec Member Report for Final Decision 17 01 2023

	6 Directorate of Place 2022/23 Transport Capital Programme – Monitor 2
	Final 22-23 Capital Programme M2 Report Annex 1
	Final 22-23 Capital Programme M2 Report Annex 2

	7 Stadium Parking Impact – Huntington Area TRO Consultation
	Annex A - Huntington proposed restrictions
	Annex B - Residents Letter Huntington
	Annex C - Experimental Residents Parking letter
	Annex D - Representation in favour to Parking Restrictions
	Annex E - Objections to Parking Restrictions
	Annex F - Issues in the Stadium area
	Annex G - Representation in favour of Permanent Residents Parking Restrictions
	Annex H - Objections to the Residents Parking Scheme


